
EAST AND WEST DEARBORN 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITIES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call Secretary Kruz & Secretary Van Noord 

III. Joint Meeting Chair for March  2019:  Chairman Saionz

IV. Approval of the February 2019 Meeting Minutes

V. Treasurer’s Report Finance/Treasurers 
A. Receive & File Report

VI. Discussion
A. Business Incentives
B. AANM Festival

VII. Action Items
A. Joint Board Actions

1. Sculpture Initiative
2. Sponsor Policy
3. Michigan Avenue Banner Installation
4. Ladies Night Amendment – Radio Addition
5. FYE2020-22 Budget

B. EDDDA Actions Only
1. Trash Receptacles
2. Tree Well Plan
3. Reimbursement for Supplies/Director Kruz

C. WDDDA Actions Only
1. Farm to Table POS/Chamber Agreement

VIII. Committee Reports

IX. DDDA Executive Management Team Report & ECD Report

X. Call to Board of Directors

XI. Call to Audience 3 min./guest 

XII. Adjournment

THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2019 
8:00 A.M. – 9:30 A.M. 

Dearborn Administrative Center 
16901 Michigan Avenue, Dearborn, MI 

001



AGENDA OVERVIEW 
Action Items 
Treasurer’s Report 
Both the EDDDA & WDDDA , 2019 financial reports will be sent under separate cover. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
Business Incentives
Adding business incentives for both the East & West DDDAs was previously identified as an objective in 
the Downtown Dearborn Transformational Strategies in both Image and Retail Innovation goals. Two 
types of incentives were identified, including a façade improvement program and a business location 
incentive. A façade improvement program will encourage beautification and improvements to the 
buildings in the districts in order to improve visitors’ first impressions and create a more vibrant 
environment. A location incentive that targets specific types of businesses based on each district’s needs 
will help to attract businesses by building confidence in the market and closing funding gaps. Both 
incentives will make Dearborn more competitive amongst other downtowns in the Metro Detroit area. 

Attached is the proposed incentive program for the Dearborn DDAs. The Design/EV Committee has 
reviewed and discussed this over the last year, and Executive Management has put the finishing touches 
on the document. The Boards will need to commit funding each year to stimulate businesses, and this 
coming FYE2020 it was recommended to fund it $40,000 which could provide an impact of up to 8 new 
businesses or façade improvements in each of the districts. The process for applicants will include a 
review with the Design/EV Committee prior to being recommended to the Board for approval. 
Applicants will have to follow design guidelines established by the DDDA for building improvements. 

Design guidelines are currently being written and will be presented at April’s meeting. The adoption of 
the business incentives will be recommended at the same time. In the meantime, the Boards should 
provide any comments or feedback so that we can make sure to consider those before final adoption. 

AANM Festival
The Arab American National Museum has been meeting with Executive Management to discuss the 
potential of bringing a new event to East Downtown Dearborn in August 2020. They will introduce a new 
FREE-admission music, food, and art festival and are seeking a partnership with the East Downtown 
Dearborn Development Authority. Thanks to the generous support of the Knight Foundation and other 
supporters, the festival will be comprised of two days featuring Arab American contemporary/pop music 
performers, artist workshops, an artisan market, and local culinary vendors and food demonstrations, 
bringing the national and the local together, making East Dearborn a hub for Arab American art through 
creative placemaking. The target audience is a burgeoning national arts community of 18 to 35-year-olds 
who support and produce Arab American art. Their goal is, that by positioning East Downtown Dearborn 
as a home base for this and other exciting national programs, the local community will also benefit by 
discovering new artists and supporting more local businesses that surround the AANM in East 
Downtown Dearborn. 

002



Executive Management and City of Dearborn recreation, police, fire, DPW and Sanitation recently met to 
discuss the logistical needs of event of this magnitude, and AANM will be pursuing in-kind donations of 
City and DDDA services. They also hope to find ways to incorporate local business involvement by 
working with the DDDA. The details of services and needs still are yet to be flushed out, but we thought 
it imperative to start the conversation early so that the event can be extremely successful.  Attached is a 
presentation that Kathryn Grabowski will review briefly at the meeting to start this conversation of 
partnership.  
 
They are looking to: 

 Utilize City Hall Park in its entirety without disruption to feature an outdoor stage with audience 
seating for ongoing performances to occur between the hours of approx. 2pm- 10pm on August 
15 and 16, 2020, beginning with setup on August 14 and ending with take-down on August 17, 
2020. 

 Close down Maple Street between Michigan Ave. & John Nagy Dr. on August 14, 15, and 16, 
2020 to accommodate an Arab American outdoor vendor/food market as part of the festival 

 Close down John Nagy Dr. up to the lines of the parking lot to allow for safe load-ins, load-outs, 
and storage while maintaining public parking access on August 14, 15, and 16, 2020 

 Have full access to the municipal parking lot on John Nagy Dr. for ease of vendor load-ins and 
parking, accessible parking, and VIP parking 

 Block off some parking space (amount TBD) in municipal lot behind the AANM 
 Block off a designated alcohol sales/consumption zone in City Hall Park or on Artspace property 

(area TBD) 
 
 
JOINT ACTIONS 
Sculpture Initiative  
This past year, the Dearborn Community Fund contracted with the Nordine brothers, who have local ties 
to Dearborn, to provide sculptures in both East & West Downtown Dearborn and at the Ford 
Community & Performing Arts Centers. These sculptures were planned for a two-year installation. Last 
year, the DDDAs both approved the first of the two year program, and the resolution attached 
authorizes the second year contribution of $5900 each district. The Dearborn Community Fun plans to 
continue to reach out to schools with their iSpy Card promotion, as well as working with CDTV to put 
together a video series featuring the art. EmmaJean Woodyard will be at the Board meeting to discuss 
this initiative in detail and to share their interest in partnering on a future Art In Public Spaces/Cultural 
Plan that the DDDAs are interested in pursuing.  
 
Sponsor Policy 
At the request of the Boards, the Executive Management team has drafted a sponsorship policy to help 
the Boards best determine approving future sponsorships of other organizations’ events, programs and 
marketing opportunities. Also included in this policy is how the DDDAs themselves will pursue sponsors 
to support its own programs and events. This helps set a standard in both directions.  
 
Included in the attachments are a Sponsor-Provider Policy and a Sponsor-Seeker Policy. 
 
Both policies seek to establish fair and transparent protocols regarding sponsorship opportunities. The 
need for two policies addresses the reality that the DDDAs will, at different times, play the role of 
sponsor-provider and that of sponsor-seeker. 

003



 
The Sponsor-Provider Policy outlines the criteria and decision making process that the DDDAs will utilize 
when receiving sponsorship requests from other organizations. 
 
The Sponsor-Seeker Policy outlines the criteria and decision making process that the DDDAs will utilize 
when approaching other organizations to serve as sponsors of the DDDAs. 
 
The Boards reviewed these policies at the February 2019 Joint Board meeting to provide feedback, as 
well as they were given the opportunity to send any additional feedback within one week from the 
Board meeting. Adding language to the criteria regarding Public Act 57/DDA purpose and powers, and 
requesting organizations to provide marketing statistics on success of programs/events or market 
penetration were recommended by Board members and legal counsel. These modifications have been 
added.  
 
Michigan Avenue Banner Installation 
For the Shop Small promotion and holidays, DPW notified the DDDAs with only a one week window 
from the promotion that they would be unable to install the Michigan Avenue banners as they normally 
have done due to other fall services they were providing throughout the city. Therefore, the DDDAs 
needed to have an outside contractor provide the installation quickly in order to meet our marketing 
timeline. The Executive Management Team inquired with each of the DDDAs current landscaping and 
maintenance providers to see if they would be able to install these large banners on Michigan Avenue, 
which typically requires a lift in order to do this. WH Canon was the only one able to provide the service. 
A resolution is needed since this was outside of the scope of the current contract with WH Canon. The 
expense is $1280 per district.  
 
Ladies Night Addendum – Radio Advertising 
In January, the Boards requested that radio advertising for Ladies Night with iHeart be brought back to 
the Boards for consideration after review of the proposal. Attached is the proposal. The commitment of 
$5,000 would be equally split between the DDDAs. For the EDDDA, $5689 is remaining in General 
Marketing. The WDDDA has $11,459 remaining.  
 
Budget FYE2020-22 
Attached are the FYE2020-22 Budgets prepared for the DDDAs. The DDDAs need to approve the budgets 
to be presented to Council. After Council adoption in April, they will then return to the Boards for final 
adoption.  
 
At the February Joint Board meeting, the Boards were presented with draft budgets for review and 
discussion.  
 
Revenues 
As previously noted, the Boards are in need of increasing and diversifying their revenue streams for 
long-term sustainability. The DDDAs’ major source of revenue is Tax Increment Financing. It has been 
encouraged by Executive Management to diversify funding so that the DDDAs are not solely reliant on 
TIF to grow and manage the districts, as well as maintaining current level of services. Increasing 
sponsorship revenue is one source that is growing and continues to be projected for future years, but 
will require Board member involvement to grow this substantially. Grants are encouraged but are 

004



usually tied with a specific project or program; therefore, these cannot be a guaranteed source of funds 
until the grant is actually awarded.  
 
The other funding source that has been explored over the last year is a Principal Shopping District 
assessment. A PSD can be assessed to provide for things such as downtown management, marketing, 
promotions, beautification, maintenance and security. PSDs do not invest in infrastructure and 
developments. A PSD can be established for the same boundaries of a DDA or different boundaries. A 
PSD can be assessed in different ways, but across the State in many other communities it is assessed on 
the square footage of the properties within the district. It was recommended that the PSD be structured 
to bring in a minimum of $150,000 annually per district. Included in the packet are details on what that 
assessment projection could be for a property. Properties are capped at $10,000 annually by State law.  
 
A 2 Mill Levy is another source of funding available to DDAs to implement, which are levied against the 
taxable value of the properties within the DDA districts. These are generally used for operations and 
management. The projected income from a 2 Mill Levy for either district is @$45,000. Again, projections 
for a property are included in the packet. 
 
Expenses 
Also as previously noted, both DDDA budgets will continue to see the collaborative efforts on programs, 
marketing and events for Downtown Dearborn, as well as the distinct projects that each district needs 
independently to stimulate growth.  
 
Across the boards: 

 Adding a social media fund line item to put all social media advertising expenditures from events 
and general marketing in this line item as opposed to with the individual event budgets. This is 
to ease financial reporting. All event budgets were then adjusted accordingly. 

 Same as above applies for printing.  
 Consolidated website hosting expenses for downtowndearborn.org and 

dearbornrestaurantweek.com into one line item. We are discontinuing service for the individual 
DDDA pages and have redirected those to downtowndearborn.org.  

 Continuing investment in new holiday décor to fully cover areas throughout the districts. 
 Landscape costs reflect the current contracts with WH Canon (EDDDA) and Fairlane Grounds 

(WDDDA). Contracts are set to renew in May 2020. (In FYE2021, it is recommended to increase 
WH Canon’s contract for watering and litter purposes, although this budget will not reflect this 
until the contract is renewed.) In addition to this we have budgeted for some additional 
landscaping needs in areas that need attention for both districts.  

 Separated streetpole banners from General Marketing line item for clarity. 
 Big Read is projected for FYE2020 and 2022 (every other year). 
 Continuing investment in Art Month at the current rate, as well as a more significant investment 

in community art initiatives as a long-range plan. To that note, an Art in Public Spaces Plan is 
recommended for the districts to develop a formal plan for what art, where and an investment 
schedule. This should then inform our annual budgets for community art investments.  

 A comprehensive Vision Plan is needed for the DDDAs and Downtown Dearborn as a whole. This 
has been budgeted for this current fiscal year, but may need to overlap fiscal years.  

 Holiday promotions/WinterFest – goal is to grow this to a Campus Martius style event/program 
within five years. 

005



 Added an Event for the WDDDA by moving Tunes at Noon to Wagner Place; and the EDDDA 
changing Tunes at Noon to an evening music event from June-July so that there is continuous 
music throughout the summer.  

 The Shop Small program is investigating an APP that can be used for coupon-usage for the 
district and consumer incentives. 

 In the future, although not specified in the three-year budget yet until we have more detail on 
potential costs, the DDDAs should plan to invest in: 
o Wayfinding (2021) 

 Entry Signs 
 Pedestrian Directionals 
 Visitor Info Boards  

o Business Development & Recruitment Efforts 
 Pop Up Shop takeovers (lease a property or purchase) 
 Chariot – Inter Shuttle  
 Redevelopment & Property Tours & Marketing 
 Business Location Incentives  

WDDDA 
Specifically for the WDDDA 

 Continue to invest in Business Development and Physical Improvements items such as 
o Connector Streetscapes 
o Michigan Avenue Streetscape 
o Wagner Place/Event Festivities Design Plan 
o W. Village Commons Plaza Redesign 
o Farmers Market Shell/Shed 
o Public Space Amenities, ie:  Mobile Charging Spots 
o Development Infill  

EDDDA 
Specifically for the EDDDA 

 Continue to invest in Business Development and Physical Improvements items such as 
o AANM Alley Improvements 
o Mural Parklet Improvements 
o Parking Lot Improvements/ Alley/Wall /Parking lot entry walls/markers 
o Raised Tree Wells – Michigan Avenue – Sidewalk Café areas 
o Landscaping improvements in parking lots and other key areas; trees on Schaefer 
o City Hall Park Improvements 
o Trash Cans 
o Window Art Displays 

 
 
 
 
 

006



However, at the Executive Committee meetings this past week, both committees are recommending the 
following changes: 
  
The WDDDA 
Revenue 
Do not institute a Principal Shopping District (PSD) assessment due to the fact that there will be two 
other City assessments coming online this year. Originally projected for FYE2021 and 22 at $150,000, 
this removal then causes a deficit by FYE2022. Therefore, reductions in expenditures and an increase in 
sponsor revenue will be necessary to maintain the recommended minimum fund balance of 10%. The 
Executive Committee requested an analysis of events, their income projections and priority to the 
district.  The Boards could require that all events must be self-funded without TIF dollars, as an option, 
but this will be challenging to ramp up sponsor efforts that quickly for FYE2020. However, please be 
aware that cutting these items doesn’t necessarily improve the bottom line because many of these 
events currently do bring in sponsor revenue and participant fees, so eliminating them means 
eliminating that funding stream as well. Executive Management recommends at a minimum instituting 
the 2 Mill Levy given the increase in landscape, maintenance and snow removal services over the last 
year. In particular, snow removal is a service that most DDAs across the State do not provide without 
assessing an additional fee.  
 
Expenses 
The WDDDA Executive Committee recommends reviewing its line-up of events and determining what is 
a priority, as well as what has a greater possibility of funding.  
 
Suggested areas in which to reduce spending include: 

FUND ITEM 
 

FYE2020 
ORIGINAL 
PROPOSAL 

FYE2020 
BUDGET 
CHANGE 

RECOMMENDATION 
REDUCTION 

2020 
REDUCTIONS 

2021 
REDUCTIONS 

2022 
REDUCTIONS 

Branding 
 

$120,000    80,000  Adjusted/ Eliminates 
Possibility to add to 
Task 6 or Wayfinding 

 $   40,000.00      

General 
Marketing & 
Banners 
 

$20,000    10,000  Reduces by 50%  $   10,000.00   $10,000.00   $10,000.00  

Dearborn 
Community 
Fund 
Sculpture 
Initiative  
 

$6,000            -    Eliminate – Pending 
Art Plan – Pursue 
Grants 

 $     6,000.00   $  6,000.00   $  6,000.00  

Henry Ford 
Promotion 
Pkg 
 

$5600            -    Pursue in-kind 
partnership 

 $     5,600.00   $  5,600.00   $  5,600.00  

Other 
Community 
Development 
 

$2000            -    Eliminate Outside 
Sponsorships 

 $     2,000.00   $  2,000.00   $  2,000.00  

Metro 
Mode/Issue 

$24,000    12,000  Reduce 
FYE2020/Remove 
FYE2021-22 

 $   12,000.00   $24,000.00   $24,000.00  

Big Read 
 

$1,000      1,000  Remove 2022      $      1,000.00  

007



Art Projects 
 

$5000 $1000 
  

deleted $4000 
annually OR/ only if 
granted or sponsored 

 $     4,000.00   $  4,000.00   $  4,000.00  

Snow 
Removal 

$45,000    20,000  reduced to only cover 
public sidewalks 
around parking lots 
and decks. 

 $   25,000.00   $25,000.00   $25,000.00  

REDUCTIONS 
TOTAL 

    $ 104,600.00   $76,600.00   $77,600.00  

 
The EDDDA 
Revenue 
The Executive Committee recommends instituting the 2 Mill Levy instead of the PSD.  
It was already projected that the EDDDA needs to increase sponsor revenue, therefore identifying other 
“sponsorable” opportunities is necessary, as well as active Board involvement in the solicitation of 
sponsors.  
 
Expenses 
The Executive Committee recommends the following areas in which to reduce spending: 
i. Jazz on the Ave $55K - Open to sponsors covering event.  DDA cannot sustain this cost. 
ii. Metro Mode $24K 
iii. Bldg. Incentive $40k 
 
After further review of the branding contract with Octane, and what may be priorities of outcomes from 
the branding initiative, the FYE2020 for branding can be reduced by $40,000 down to $80,000 each 
district, which will cover the remainder of the contract, plus some minor additions to Task 6 if the 
campaign strategy recommends and the Board feels important to add. What would not be able to be 
started in FYE2020 is wayfinding. This would be a multi-year project anyways, and best to defer at this 
point until more details are available on what is needed.  
 
EDDDA ACTIONS ONLY 
Trash Receptacles 
The Design/EV Committee identified through the street inventory analysis that the one of the most 
needed amenities in the EDDDA is trash receptacles. Board member Cislo volunteered her time to 
identify the quantity and locations of needed receptacles, which in her analysis was 25 units along 
Michigan Avenue and Schaefer Road. It is recommended to go with a unit that is durable, heavy enough 
or the capabilities of bolting down so they don’t “walk” away, and consistent through the district. This 
could also be an opportunity to support sustainable measures by using recycled metal, and/or to 
support the arts and culture of the district by either adding an artistic touch to them or pop of color. 
There are approximately 7 black iron traditional receptacles in storage that need powder coating or 
cleaning, and the EDDDA has $10,958 remaining in its budget for streetscape amenities.  Typically trash 
receptacles range between $800-$1500 depending on size, style, material and shipping. Executive 
Management would like to hear the Board’s preference in style, design and materials, and then will 
proceed with securing the trash receptacles. Resolution is attached. 
 

008



Tree Well Removal Plan 
Attached is the final tree well removal plan for Michigan Avenue in order to encourage more 
opportunities for sidewalk cafes. These can be pursued when a business indicates interest or in 
conjunction with a new development or as a recruitment tool for a business. The attached document 
notes the planter removal options that vary along the corridor for East Downtown Dearborn. The cost 
opinions provided are based on aerial measurements and may be more or less depending on actual field 
measurements, current site conditions or unknown utility infrastructure.  These also vary depending on 
the location.  
 
Tieing this together with the business incentive program (which will be discussed at the Board meeting 
and is attached), will be the most efficient, effective and consistent way to authorize this expenditure in 
the future for the EDDDA with interested businesses. The EDDDA has $7,706 remaining in business 
incentives this fiscal year, but if budgeted for FYE2020, there will be up to $40,000 that businesses could 
apply for to encourage cafes. 
 
WDDDA ACTIONS ONLY 
 
Farm to Table Point of Sale System (POS) 
Executive Management met with the Dearborn Area Chamber of Commerce to discuss the possibility of  
partnering with the Farm to Table event to use of the Chamber’s Point of Sale System (POS) in order to 
accept payments for both tickets and auction items. The Chamber has agreed to provide a link on their 
website in order for interested parties to purchase tickets for the event. The Chamber is providing the 
WDDDA with the POS systems to use on the ground at the event for auction sale items. In exchange for 
the services, the WDDDA will reimburse all processing fees associated with the sale of tickets from their 
website, and donated auction items from the event, in addition to 5% of total sales processed through 
their system for both online ticket sales and donated auction item sales at the event. This will not 
include sales from items sold by Sports Auction Items, nor sales that are received via check or sponsors.  
 
 
 
 

009



1 

CITY OF DEARBORN 
EAST DEARBORN DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (EDDDA) 
WEST DEARBORN DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (WDDDA) 

REGULARLY SCHEDULED JOINT BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 21, 2019 

DEARBORN ADMINISTRATIVE CENTER 
MINUTES 

 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT 
JOINT EAST & WEST : Mark Guido, Mayor Jack O’Reilly 
 
EAST DDDA   : Scott Saionz, Jay Kruz, Judith McNeeley, Kamal Turfah, 

Janice Cislo, Mary O’Bryan (left at 10:10am) 
 
WEST DDDA   : Sam Abbas, Thomas Clark, John McWilliams, 

Jackie Lovejoy (by phone), Karen Nigosian 
Doug Van Noord (arrived at 8:20am, left at 9:56am) 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT   
EAST DDDA   : Joseph Bojovic, Dan Merritt 
 
WEST DDDA   : James Jernigan, Audrey Ralko, Mohammed Hider  
 
NON-MEMBERS PRESENT 
CITY OF DEARBORN : Licia Yangouyian (Law), Maria Buffone (Finance), Laura  

Freeman (Council), Maryann Zelasko (ECD), Cristina  
Sheppard-Decius (DDDA), Jean Smith (DDDA), Ellen  
Goedert (DDDA), Teresa Duhl (DDDA). 

 
OTHERS   : Brian Boyle (Issue Media Group/Metromode) 
 
I. Call to Order 

Joint DDDA Chair Sam Abbas called the meeting to order at approximately 8:09am. 
 
II. Roll Call 

EDDDA: Secretary-Treasurer Jay Kruz called the roll of Board members. A quorum was 
Present. 
 
WDDDA: Chair Sam Abbas called the roll of Board members. A quorum was present.  
 

III. Joint Meeting Chair for February 2019: Sam Abbas 
  
 

010



2 

IV. Approval of the January 2019 Meeting Minutes 
EDDDA: The minutes from the January 17, 2019 Joint Board meeting were presented   
for approval. Director Mark Guido motioned to approve. Secretary-Treasurer Jay Kruz 
seconded. Passed by unanimous vote. 
 
WDDDA: The minutes from the January 17, 2019 Joint Board meeting were presented   
for approval. Director Mark Guido motioned to approve. Director Karen Nigosian 
seconded. Passed by unanimous vote. 
 

V. Treasurer’s Report 
A. Receive & File Report 
 
EDDDA: Maria Buffone from Finance reviewed the financial statement dated February 1, 
2019. Revenue to date totaled $783,865. Expenditures to date totaled $230,879. The 
current cash position equals $1,598,615, and it is estimated that the EDDDA’s cash 
position at the end of the fiscal year will be $550,983. Per Chairperson Scott Saionz, the 
Treasurer’s Report was received and filed.  
 
WDDDA: Maria Buffone from Finance reviewed the financial statement dated February 
1, 2019. Revenue to date totaled $706,641. Expenditures to date totaled $333,251. The 
current cash position equals $1,068,082, and it is estimated that the WDDDA’s cash 
position at the end of the fiscal year will be $364,278. Per Chairperson Sam Abbas, the 
Treasurer’s Report was received and filed. 
 

VI. Presentation: Dearborn 2018 Impact Report by Metromode 
 Presented by Brian Boyle of Issue Media Group. Presentation included  

slides to illustrate the impact, outreach, and viewership of 2018 Metromode articles and 
media focused on Dearborn. For a full report, see the board packet attachment. 

 
VII. Action Items 
A. Joint Action Items 
  

1. Metromode Contract Renewal 
EDDDA: The EDDDA Board approved allocating $12,000 from Community Promotions 
account 297-6100-911-51-00 for a media contract with Issue Media Group/Metromode 
for a contract running March 1, 2019 - August 31, 2019,  with the option of two three-
month renewals at $6,000 each; and that the EDDDA Executive Director be authorized 
to execute and sign the contract agreement; subject to review and approval by 
Corporation Counsel. Director Mary O’Bryan motioned to approve. Director Kamal 
Turfah seconded. Passed by unanimous vote. 
 
WDDDA: The WDDDA Board approved allocating $12,000 from Community Promotions 
account 296-6100-911-51-00 for a media contract with Issue Media Group/Metromode 
for a contract running March 1, 2019 - August 31, 2019,  with the option of two three-

011



3 

month renewals at $6,000 each; and that the WDDDA Executive Director be authorized 
to execute and sign the contract agreement; subject to review and approval by 
Corporation Counsel. Mayor Jack O’Reilly motioned to approve. Director John 
McWilliams seconded. Passed by unanimous vote. 
 
2. Snow Removal- Additional Funds 
EDDDA: The EDDDA Board authorizes an additional $15,000 to the snow removal 
services budget 297-6100-911-34-90 for contracted services for the 2018-2019 winter 
season. Final payment for services will be contingent upon Premium Lawn’s (contractor) 
repair of damaged fencing and public property in the WDDDA district.   
Director Kamal Turfah motioned to approve. Secretary-Treasurer Jay Kruz seconded. 
Passed by unanimous vote.  
 
WDDDA: The WDDDA Board authorizes an additional $15,000 to the snow removal 
services budget 296-6100-911-34-90 for contracted services for the 2018-2019 winter 
season. Final payment for services will be contingent upon Premium Lawn’s (contractor) 
repair of damaged fencing and public property in the WDDDA district.   
Mayor Jack O’Reilly motioned to approve. Secretary-Treasurer Doug Van Noord 
seconded. Passed by unanimous vote.  
 
3. Amended Dearborn Restaurant Week Resolution 
EDDDA: In January. the EDDDA board authorized sharing expenditures equally with the 
WDDDA related to Dearborn Restaurant Week with the following service providers: 
Hallarsen Group, iHeart Media, Times Herald, Outfront Billboards, Got Print, Beshara 
Printing, Malko Media, and Metro Times. The EDDDA now approves changes in line 
items within the same total budget. Secretary-Treasurer Jay Kruz motioned to approve. 
Director Jan Cislo seconded. Motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 
WDDDA: In January. the WDDDA board authorized sharing expenditures equally with 
the EDDDA related to Dearborn Restaurant Week with the following service providers: 
Hallarsen Group, iHeart Media, Times Herald, Outfront Billboards, Got Print, Beshara 
Printing, Malko Media, and Metro Times. The WDDDA now approves changes in line 
items within the same total budget. Director Mark Guido motioned to approve. Director 
Tom Clark seconded. Motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 
4. Executive Management Contract 
EDDDA: The EDDDA Board of Directors authorizes the EDDDA Chairperson to execute 
a contract with POW! Strategies, Inc. for executive director services extended through 
December 31, 2019. The contract is subject to the review and approval of Corporation 
Counsel. Director Kamal Turfah motioned to approve. Director Judith McNeeley 
seconded. Motion passed by unanimous vote.  
 
WDDDA: The WDDDA Board of Directors authorizes the WDDDA Chairperson to 
execute a contract with POW! Strategies, Inc. for executive director services extended 

012



4 

through December 31, 2019. The contract is subject to the review and approval of 
Corporation Counsel. Mayor Jack O’Reilly motioned to approve. Director Tom Clark  
seconded. Motion passed by unanimous vote.  
 

B. EDDDA Actions Only 
1. Artspace Loan Extension 
The EDDDA authorizes the EDDDA chairperson to execute a consent document for the 
Artspace/IFF loan modification agreement, revising the loan maturity date to June 1, 
2019, subject to review and approval by the Corporation Counsel. Mayor Jack O’Reilly 
motioned to approve. Director Kamal Turfah seconded. Motion passed by unanimous 
vote. 
 
2. Free Comic Book Day Sponsorship 
The EDDDA approved an amount not to exceed $1,000.00 from the Community 
Promotions budget account, 297-6100-911-51-00 in support of Green Brain Comics’ 
Free Comic Book Day to be held on May 4, 2019. The money provided by the EDDDA 
will be used to promote the EDDDA and the EDDDA will be listed as a sponsor in all 
promotional materials. Director Mark Guido motioned to approve. Director Judith 
McNeeley seconded. Motion passed by unanimous vote.  
 

C. WDDDA Actions Only- None 
 
VIII. Discussion 
A. Sponsorship Policy 
Teresa Duhl and Cristina Sheppard-Decius presented Sponsorship Policy for Board review. 
Voting on policy to occur at future board meeting.  
B. FYE 2020-22 Budget Draft 
Cristina Sheppard-Decius and Maria Buffone presented FYE 2020-22 Budget Draft for Board 
review. Voting on budget to occur at future board meeting.  

 
IX. Committee Reports 
 A. Promotions/Organization Updates 

Chairperson Sam Abbas elected to postpone committee updates until the March 2019  
Board meeting.  

 B. Design/Economic Vitality 
 Chairperson Sam Abbas elected to postpone committee updates until the March 2019  

Board meeting.  
 
X. DDDA Executive Management Team Report & ECD Report 

Cristina Sheppard-Decius highlighted changes in reporting under PA 57, the Michigan 
Downtown Association Conference, and the Business Owners and Property Owners 
Roundtable. For more details, see information provided in Board Packet.  

 
XI. Call to Board of Directors 

013



5 

None. 
 

XII. Call to Audience 
 None. 
 
XIII. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn meeting made by Secretary-Treasurer Jay Kruz. Seconded by  
Director Mark Guido. Motion passed by unanimous vote. Meeting adjourned at 10:43am.   
 
 
 
Approved by: 
 
Jay Kruz, Secretary-Treasurer, EDDDA 
 
___________________________________ 
 
 
Doug Van Noord, Secretary-Treasurer, WDDDA 
 
___________________________________ 
 
 
 

 

014



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
1
9
,
 
0
6
:
1
9
:
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
P
R
E
P
A
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
W
O
R
K
S
H
E
E
T
 
 
F
Y
2
0
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
1

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
G
M
6
0
1
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
O
R
 
F
I
S
C
A
L
 
Y
E
A
R
 
2
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
I
N
G
 
P
E
R
I
O
D
 
 
0
9
/
2
0
1
9

P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
B
Y
 
B
u
f
f
o
n
e
,
 
M
a
r
i
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
B
R
E
F
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
Y
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
Y
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
U
S
T
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
-
T
-
D
 
 
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
T
H
I
S
 
Y
E
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t

E
A
S
T
 
D
B
N
 
D
O
W
N
T
O
W
N
 
D
E
V
 
A
U
T

2
9
7
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
1
1
.
4
0
-
0
0
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
8
,
3
7
4
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
6
,
1
4
5
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
2
,
8
6
7
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
2
,
8
6
7
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
8
,
9
6
7
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
0
,
5
3
5
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
9
,
9
9
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
9
,
9
1
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
0
,
3
1
0
-

2
9
7
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
3
0
.
0
5
-
1
4
 
L
O
C
 
C
O
M
M
 
S
T
A
B
I
L
 
S
H
A
R
E
 
A
P
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
9
7
9
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
7
3
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
7
3
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
7
4
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
7
4
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
7
4
0
-

2
9
7
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
6
1
.
1
0
-
0
5
 
I
N
T
E
R
E
S
T
-
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
2
4
6
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
2
5
7
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
6
2
1
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
6
2
1
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
0
4
5
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
1
5
5
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
,
2
1
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
,
5
0
6
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
,
8
0
2
-

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
3
6
5
.
9
0
-
0
0
 
D
O
N
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
F
R
O
M
 
P
R
I
V
 
S
O
U
R
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
7
6
1
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
,
9
6
5
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
,
0
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
,
0
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
8
7
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
,
0
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
,
0
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
,
0
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
,
0
0
0
-

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
3
6
9
.
9
0
-
0
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
2
0
5
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
4
,
2
0
5
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
,
9
1
0
-

2
9
7
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
9
1
.
9
1
-
0
1
 
C
O
N
T
R
I
 
F
R
O
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
6
8
1
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
,
8
4
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
,
8
4
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
5
6
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
,
8
4
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
3
1
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
3
1
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
3
1
0
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
6
,
3
6
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
3
,
0
4
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
8
,
3
2
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
8
,
3
2
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
9
,
1
7
5
-
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
2
,
2
6
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
5
,
4
6
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
7
5
,
6
7
1
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
1
4
,
0
7
2
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
*
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
E
N
U
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
6
,
3
6
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
3
,
0
4
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
8
,
3
2
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
8
,
3
2
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
9
,
1
7
5
-
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
2
,
2
6
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
5
,
4
6
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
7
5
,
6
7
1
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
1
4
,
0
7
2
-

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
1
0
-
2
0
 
W
A
G
E
S
,
 
P
A
R
T
 
T
I
M
E
/
S
E
A
S
O
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
,
2
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
5
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
a
l
a
r
y
,
W
a
g
e
s
,
A
l
l
o
w
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
,
2
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
5
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
2
2
-
0
0
 
F
I
C
A
/
M
E
D
I
C
A
R
E
,
 
C
I
T
Y
 
S
H
A
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
2
6
-
0
0
 
W
O
R
K
E
R
S
 
C
O
M
P
 
C
O
N
T
R
I
B
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
e
r
s
o
n
n
e
l
 
S
r
v
s
-
B
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
3
4
-
4
0
 
B
U
I
L
D
I
N
G
 
D
E
M
O
L
I
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
7
-
2
9
7
2
-
4
6
3
.
3
4
-
9
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
6
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
,
8
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
,
8
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
,
8
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
3
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
3
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
3
1
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
0
-
4
0
 
A
U
D
I
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
0
-
9
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
P
R
O
F
.
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
4
-
9
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
,
8
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
,
0
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
7
,
9
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
7
,
4
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
7
,
5
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
7
,
4
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
9
,
8
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
2
,
6
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
2
,
6
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
-
P
r
o
f
&
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
u
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
,
6
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
7
,
5
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
3
,
0
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
4
,
8
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
6
,
9
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
5
,
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
1
,
9
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
4
,
7
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
4
,
7
2
6

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
4
3
-
8
2
 
C
O
P
I
E
R
S
 
R
 
&
 
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
p
a
i
r
 
&
 
M
a
i
n
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
4
4
-
1
0
 
B
U
I
L
D
I
N
G
 
R
E
N
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
,
7
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
1
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
n
t
a
l
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
,
7
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
1
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
5
-
1
0
 
A
R
C
H
I
T
E
C
T
/
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
 
S
V
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
5
-
2
0
 
C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
C
O
N
T
R
A
C
T
O
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
1
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
7
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
7
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
4
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
8
,
0
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
8
,
0
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
1
-
0
0
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
P
R
O
M
O
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
,
9
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
4
,
9
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
,
2
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
6
,
2
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
3
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
6
,
2
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
6
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
,
1
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
P
r
o
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
,
9
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
4
,
9
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
,
2
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
6
,
2
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
3
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
6
,
2
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
6
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
,
1
8
0

01
5



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
1
9
,
 
0
6
:
1
9
:
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
P
R
E
P
A
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
W
O
R
K
S
H
E
E
T
 
 
F
Y
2
0
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
2

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
G
M
6
0
1
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
O
R
 
F
I
S
C
A
L
 
Y
E
A
R
 
2
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
I
N
G
 
P
E
R
I
O
D
 
 
0
9
/
2
0
1
9

P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
B
Y
 
B
u
f
f
o
n
e
,
 
M
a
r
i
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
B
R
E
F
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
Y
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
Y
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
U
S
T
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
-
T
-
D
 
 
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
T
H
I
S
 
Y
E
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
2
-
1
0
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
I
N
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
2
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
8
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
&
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
2
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
8
3
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
3
-
0
0
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
,
 
T
E
L
E
 
S
E
R
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
8
-
1
0
 
S
T
A
F
F
 
T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
&
 
T
R
A
N
 
E
X
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
&
 
T
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
0
-
1
0
 
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
2
5

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
0
-
2
0
 
P
O
S
T
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
1
-
9
0
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
-
 
N
O
N
 
C
A
P
I
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
2
-
4
0
 
P
L
A
N
T
I
N
G
 
M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
0
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
&
 
M
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
4
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
9
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
,
7
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
,
7
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
,
7
2
5

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
6
8
-
8
0
 
L
I
C
E
N
S
E
S
,
 
F
E
E
S
 
&
 
P
E
R
M
I
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
5
-
0
0
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S
H
I
P
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
6
-
0
0
 
R
E
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
 
M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
8
-
8
0
 
L
I
C
E
N
S
E
S
,
 
F
E
E
S
 
&
 
P
E
R
M
I
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
8
-
9
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
O
P
E
R
A
T
I
N
G
 
E
X
P
E
N
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
2
,
7
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
6
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
4
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
4
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
4
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
t
h
e
r
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
3
,
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
,
4
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
9
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
9
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
9
4
5

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
8
0
.
9
2
-
7
5
 
B
R
O
W
N
F
I
E
L
D
 
F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
5
,
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
5
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
,
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
6
,
6
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
8
,
3
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
O
u
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
5
,
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
5
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
,
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
6
,
6
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
8
,
3
3
0

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
9
8
-
0
0
 
U
N
D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
E
D
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
,
3
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
,
3
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
n
d
i
s
t
r
i
b
u
t
e
d
 
A
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
,
3
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
,
3
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
*
 
 
 
 
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
I
T
U
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
6
1
,
6
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
5
1
,
2
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
4
,
2
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
0
7
,
1
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
1
,
6
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
9
5
,
3
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
1
0
,
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
0
8
,
4
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
0
9
,
6
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
*
*
 
 
 
 
E
A
S
T
 
D
B
N
 
D
O
W
N
T
O
W
N
 
D
E
V
 
A
U
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
5
,
2
7
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
8
,
2
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
5
,
9
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
8
,
8
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
7
,
5
7
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
3
,
1
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
5
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
7
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
4
5
1
-

01
6



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
1
9
:
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
1
9
 
T
R
I
A
L
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
1

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
:
 
G
M
2
5
7
U
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
S
 
O
F
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
I
N
G
 
P
E
R
I
O
D
 
0
9
/
2
0
1
9

C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
E
A
S
T
 
D
B
N
 
D
O
W
N
T
O
W
N
 
D
E
V
 
A
U
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 1
0
1
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
A
S
S
E
T
S
 
/
 
E
Q
U
I
T
Y
 
I
N
 
P
O
O
L
E
D
 
C
A
S
H

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 1
,
5
5
7
,
9
7
6
.
0
7

 
 
 
 
 1
1
5
 
0
1
 
0
0
 
 
A
/
R
 
/
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 4
,
8
2
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 1
7
0
 
0
3
 
0
0
 
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
/
 
L
T
 
L
O
A
N
S
/
N
O
T
E
 
R
E
C
E
I
V
A
B
L
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 1
7
7
,
0
3
4
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 1
9
9
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
R
E
V
E
N
U
E
 
/
 
R
E
V
E
N
U
E
 
S
U
M
M
A
R
Y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 7
8
9
,
1
7
4
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 2
0
2
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
L
I
A
B
I
L
I
T
I
E
S
 
/
 
V
O
U
C
H
E
R
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 9
,
1
1
3
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 2
4
4
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
E
Q
U
I
T
Y
 
/
 
R
E
S
E
R
V
E
 
F
O
R
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 2
7
9
,
8
0
4
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 2
4
9
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
E
Q
U
I
T
Y
 
/
 
F
U
N
D
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 1
,
2
3
3
,
1
4
7
.
1
8

 
 
 
 
 2
5
1
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
E
Q
U
I
T
Y
 
/
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
 
S
U
M
M
A
R
Y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 2
7
9
,
8
0
4
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 2
5
2
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
E
Q
U
I
T
Y
 
/
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
I
T
U
R
E
 
S
U
M
M
A
R
Y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 2
9
1
,
6
0
4
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
1
1
,
2
3
9
.
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
1
1
,
2
3
9
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
I
S
 
I
N
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

01
7



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
1
9
:
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
R
I
A
L
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
1

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
:
 
G
M
2
5
7
U
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
O
R
 
F
I
S
C
A
L
 
Y
E
A
R
 
2
0
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
I
N
G
 
P
E
R
I
O
D
 
0
9
/
2
0
1
9

C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
S
 
O
F
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 I
N
D
E
X
 
T
O
 
F
U
N
D
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S

 
 
F
U
N
D
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E

 
 
 
2
9
7
 
 
E
A
S
T
 
D
B
N
 
D
O
W
N
T
O
W
N
 
D
E
V
 
A
U
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

01
8



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
2
0
:
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
 
M
A
S
T
E
R
 
L
I
S
T
I
N
G
 
B
Y
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
1

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
:
 
G
M
1
5
2
L

C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
I
N
C
L
U
D
E
S
 
U
N
P
O
S
T
E
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
S

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
Q
U
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
I
N
G

 
 
 
 
 
 P
.
O
.
 
N
U
M
 
 
E
N
C
 
D
A
T
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1
9
 
2
9
7
-
2
9
7
2
-
4
6
3
.
3
4
-
9
0

 
0
9
4
9
0
9
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
1
8
 
0
0
0
8
4
4
7
 
 
W
 
H
 
C
A
N
O
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
3
8
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
1
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
7
4
.
0
0

1
9
 
2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
5
-
1
0

 
E
0
8
0
0
6
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
1
4
5
7
 
 
R
E
D
I
C
O
 
H
O
L
D
I
N
G
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
5
5
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
8
3
1
.
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
8
3
1
.
0
6

1
9
 
2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
5
-
2
0

 
E
0
8
0
0
6
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
1
4
5
7
 
 
R
E
D
I
C
O
 
H
O
L
D
I
N
G
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
5
5
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
1
4
6
.
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
1
4
6
.
8
4

1
9
 
2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
4
-
9
0

 
0
9
4
1
0
6
 
 
0
7
/
0
2
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
3
9
6
9
 
 
P
O
W
 
S
T
R
A
T
E
G
I
E
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
5
1
5
.
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
6
0
7
.
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
9
0
8
.
0
7

 
0
9
4
7
1
2
 
 
0
7
/
0
2
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
6
2
0
 
 
T
A
N
N
E
R
 
F
R
I
E
D
M
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
1
0
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
5
8
.
5
0

 
0
9
4
9
0
9
 
 
1
0
/
0
5
/
1
8
 
0
0
0
8
4
4
7
 
 
W
 
H
 
C
A
N
O
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
6
0
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
,
0
2
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
8
7
.
0
0

 
0
9
5
6
6
6
 
 
0
8
/
1
6
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
2
5
8
5
 
 
C
A
M
P
B
E
L
L
'
S
 
C
L
E
A
N
I
N
G
 
C
O
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
0
2
3
 
 
1
1
/
0
6
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
9
3
8
 
 
P
R
E
M
I
U
M
 
L
A
W
N
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
,
0
9
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
9
0
2
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
7
,
6
8
8
.
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
2
8
2
.
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
,
4
0
6
.
0
7

1
9
 
2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
4
4
-
1
0

 
0
9
5
7
2
6
 
 
0
8
/
2
9
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
1
9
3
7
 
 
A
R
T
S
P
A
C
E
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
1
0
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
2
9
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
1
2
.
5
0

1
9
 
2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
1
-
0
0

 
0
9
5
1
6
3
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
5
2
6
5
 
 
O
C
T
A
N
E
 
D
E
S
I
G
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
,
1
4
3
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
5
6
3
.
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
5
8
0
.
3
6

 
0
9
5
7
8
9
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
5
2
0
1
 
 
R
O
C
K
E
T
 
C
O
P
Y
 
P
R
I
N
T
 
S
H
O
P
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
5
7
9
0
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
9
4
6
 
 
B
E
S
H
A
R
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
6
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
3
.
2
5

 
0
9
5
8
4
3
 
 
0
9
/
2
8
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
5
2
3
6
 
 
B
R
I
G
H
T
 
S
K
Y
 
C
R
E
A
T
I
V
E
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
5
8
6
1
 
 
0
9
/
2
8
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
9
9
3
 
 
I
H
E
A
R
T
 
M
E
D
I
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
0
1
1
 
 
1
1
/
0
2
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
9
4
6
 
 
B
E
S
H
A
R
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
3
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
9
.
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
5
0

 
0
9
6
1
2
4
 
 
1
2
/
2
0
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
3
7
4
4
 
 
B
A
M
B
O
O
Z
L
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
2
9
2
 
 
0
2
/
1
3
/
1
9
 
0
0
9
1
4
5
4
 
 
A
L
E
X
A
N
D
E
R
 
Z
O
N
J
I
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
2
5
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
2
9
6
 
 
0
2
/
1
3
/
1
9
 
0
0
1
5
5
3
2
 
 
M
 
C
A
N
T
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
3
1
5
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
1
9
 
0
0
1
4
5
8
9
 
 
M
A
L
K
O
M
E
D
I
A
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
3
1
6
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
1
9
 
0
0
1
0
3
7
3
 
 
T
H
E
 
H
E
N
R
Y
 
F
O
R
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
0
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
3
3
0
 
 
0
2
/
2
6
/
1
9
 
0
0
1
5
2
3
6
 
 
B
R
I
G
H
T
 
S
K
Y
 
C
R
E
A
T
I
V
E
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
3
3
3
 
 
0
2
/
2
6
/
1
9
 
0
0
1
2
9
8
3
 
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
H
O
U
S
E
 
P
U
B
L
I
S
H
E
R
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
3
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
3
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
,
2
0
0
.
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
6
0
5
.
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
,
5
9
5
.
6
1

1
9
 
2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
3
-
0
0

 
0
9
5
6
4
1
 
 
0
8
/
1
3
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
3
5
3
8
 
 
A
T
&
T
 
/
 
S
B
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
.
9
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
.
0
6

 
0
9
5
6
4
2
 
 
0
8
/
1
3
/
1
8
 
0
0
0
4
4
1
2
 
 
S
P
R
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
.
9
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
8
.
0
6

1
9
 
2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
2
-
4
0

 
0
9
4
9
0
9
 
 
1
0
/
0
5
/
1
8
 
0
0
0
8
4
4
7
 
 
W
 
H
 
C
A
N
O
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
1
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
2
,
6
3
2
.
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
2
,
8
2
8
.
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
9
,
8
0
4
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
2
,
6
3
2
.
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
2
,
8
2
8
.
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
9
,
8
0
4
.
1
4

01
9



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
 
 
 
3
/
0
9
/
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
2
0
:
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
1

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
D
M
1
8
9
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
F
O
R
 
F
/
Y
 
2
0
1
9
 
F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
 
 
 
A
L
L
 
A
C
T
I
V
E
 
O
N
L
Y

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
/
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
I
O
R
 
Y
E
A
R
S
'
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
E
N
C
U
M
B
E
R
E
D

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
N
A
M
E
:
 
 
A
5
5
0
0
0
 
E
a
s
t
 
D
e
a
r
b
o
r
n
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
M
A
N
A
G
E
R
:
 
B
a
r
r
y
 
M
u
r
r
a
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
P
O
N
S
O
R
:
 
U
N
K
N
O
W
N

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
3
4
-
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
4
,
3
2
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
4
,
3
2
5
.
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

B
U
I
L
D
I
N
G
 
D
E
M
O
L
I
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
3
-
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
E
N
A
N
C
E

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
5
-
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
,
6
0
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
8
3
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
7
7
0
.
9
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
8
3
1
.
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
6
-

A
R
C
H
I
T
E
C
T
/
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
 
S
V
C

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
5
-
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
6
,
2
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
1
4
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
9
,
1
1
8
.
7
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
1
4
6
.
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
1
6

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
C
O
N
T
R
A
C
T
O
R

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
5
-
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
3
2
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
3
2
0
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G
 
&
 
I
N
S
P
 
S
E
R
V

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
6
8
-
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

S
E
T
T
L
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
E
X
P
E
N
S
E

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
9
8
-
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

U
N
D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
E
D
 
A
P
P
R
O
P

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
0
-
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
3
1
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
3
0
9
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

O
T
H
E
R
 
P
R
O
F
.
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
4
-
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
,
1
5
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
,
1
5
5
.
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

O
T
H
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 E
X
P
E
N
S
E
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
3
9
,
4
8
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
3
,
9
7
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
8
5
,
5
0
1
.
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
3
,
9
7
7
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
3
9
,
4
8
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
3
,
9
7
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
8
5
,
5
0
1
.
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
3
,
9
7
7
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
3
9
,
4
8
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
3
,
9
7
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
8
5
,
5
0
1
.
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
3
,
9
7
7
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

02
0



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
 
 
 
3
/
0
9
/
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
2
0
:
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
2

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
D
M
1
8
9
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
F
O
R
 
F
/
Y
 
2
0
1
9
 
F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
 
 
 
A
L
L
 
A
C
T
I
V
E
 
O
N
L
Y

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
/
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
I
O
R
 
Y
E
A
R
S
'
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
E
N
C
U
M
B
E
R
E
D

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
N
A
M
E
:
 
 
M
2
0
0
0
6
 
E
 
D
b
n
 
P
k
g
 
M
a
s
t
e
r
 
D
s
g
n
 
P
l
n
 
M
A
N
A
G
E
R
:
 
B
a
r
r
y
 
M
u
r
r
a
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
P
O
N
S
O
R
:
 
U
N
K
N
O
W
N

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
5
-
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
4
,
1
9
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
,
6
7
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
1
,
5
2
8
.
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
,
6
7
0
.
0
0

A
R
C
H
I
T
E
C
T
/
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
 
S
V
C

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
5
-
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
,
3
6
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
8
.
0
0

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
C
O
N
T
R
A
C
T
O
R

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
5
-
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G
 
&
 
I
N
S
P
 
S
E
R
V

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
9
8
-
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
9
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
9
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
9
4
.
0
0

U
N
D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
E
D
 
A
P
P
R
O
P

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 E
X
P
E
N
S
E
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
9
,
9
9
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
,
0
0
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
0
,
9
9
0
.
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
,
0
0
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
9
,
9
9
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
,
0
0
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
0
,
9
9
0
.
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
,
0
0
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
9
,
9
9
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
,
0
0
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
0
,
9
9
0
.
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
,
0
0
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

02
1



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
 
 
 
3
/
0
9
/
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
2
0
:
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
3

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
D
M
1
8
9
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
F
O
R
 
F
/
Y
 
2
0
1
9
 
F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
 
 
 
A
L
L
 
A
C
T
I
V
E
 
O
N
L
Y

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
/
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
I
O
R
 
Y
E
A
R
S
'
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
E
N
C
U
M
B
E
R
E
D

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
N
A
M
E
:
 
 
M
2
0
0
1
7
 
E
D
D
D
A
 
P
r
k
i
n
g
 
L
o
t
 
R
e
c
o
n
s
t
r
 
M
A
N
A
G
E
R
:
 
M
i
c
h
a
e
l
 
B
e
w
i
c
k
,
 
E
x
e
c
 
D
i
r
 
 
 
S
P
O
N
S
O
R
:
 
N
/
A

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
8
-
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

O
T
H
E
R
 
O
P
E
R
A
T
I
N
G
 
E
X
P
E
N
S
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 E
X
P
E
N
S
E
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

02
2



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
 
 
 
3
/
0
9
/
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
2
0
:
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
4

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
D
M
1
8
9
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
F
O
R
 
F
/
Y
 
2
0
1
9
 
F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
 
 
 
A
L
L
 
A
C
T
I
V
E
 
O
N
L
Y

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
/
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
I
O
R
 
Y
E
A
R
S
'
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
E
N
C
U
M
B
E
R
E
D

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
N
A
M
E
:
 
 
Q
9
9
9
9
9
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
I
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
 
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
 
 
M
A
N
A
G
E
R
:
 
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
f
o
r
 
F
u
t
u
r
e
 
U
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
S
P
O
N
S
O
R
:
 
U
N
K
N
O
W
N

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
9
8
-
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

U
N
D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
E
D
 
A
P
P
R
O
P

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 E
X
P
E
N
S
E
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

02
3



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
 
 
 
3
/
0
9
/
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
2
0
:
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
5

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
D
M
1
8
9
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
F
O
R
 
F
/
Y
 
2
0
1
9
 
F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
 
 
 
A
L
L
 
A
C
T
I
V
E
 
O
N
L
Y

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
/
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
I
O
R
 
Y
E
A
R
S
'
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
E
N
C
U
M
B
E
R
E
D

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
N
A
M
E
:
 
 
Z
7
7
1
0
0
 
M
i
c
h
i
g
a
n
 
M
a
i
n
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
P
r
g
m
 
M
A
N
A
G
E
R
:
 
M
i
c
h
a
e
l
 
J
 
B
o
e
t
t
c
h
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
P
O
N
S
O
R
:
 
N
/
A

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
3
6
5
.
9
0
-
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

D
O
N
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
F
R
O
M
 
P
R
I
V
 
S
O
U
R
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 R
E
V
E
N
U
E
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

02
4



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
 
 
 
3
/
0
9
/
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
2
0
:
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
6

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
D
M
1
8
9
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
F
O
R
 
F
/
Y
 
2
0
1
9
 
F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
 
 
 
A
L
L
 
A
C
T
I
V
E
 
O
N
L
Y

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
/
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
I
O
R
 
Y
E
A
R
S
'
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
E
N
C
U
M
B
E
R
E
D

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
N
A
M
E
:
 
 
Z
7
7
6
2
0
 
A
r
t
s
p
a
c
e
 
E
n
d
e
a
v
o
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
N
A
G
E
R
:
 
M
i
c
h
a
e
l
 
B
e
w
i
c
k
,
 
E
x
e
c
 
D
i
r
 
 
 
S
P
O
N
S
O
R
:
 
U
N
K
N
O
W
N

2
9
7
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
3
0
.
0
1
-
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

O
T
H
E
R

2
9
7
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
9
1
.
9
2
-
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

D
E
S
I
G
N
A
T
E
D
 
P
U
R
P
O
S
E
S
 
F
U
N
D

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
3
3
0
.
0
1
-
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
6
,
8
3
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
6
,
8
3
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

O
T
H
E
R

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
3
6
5
.
9
0
-
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

D
O
N
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
F
R
O
M
 
P
R
I
V
 
S
O
U
R
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 R
E
V
E
N
U
E
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
1
,
8
3
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
1
,
8
3
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
3
0
-
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
6
,
8
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
6
,
8
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

O
T
H
E
R
 
P
R
O
F
.
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
3
4
-
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
9
,
3
5
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
2
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
6
,
8
3
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
2
2
.
0
0

B
U
I
L
D
I
N
G
 
D
E
M
O
L
I
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
4
5
-
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
,
0
0
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
4
,
2
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
5
.
0
0

A
R
C
H
I
T
E
C
T
/
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
 
S
V
C

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
6
8
-
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

L
I
C
E
N
S
E
S
,
 
F
E
E
S
 
&
 
P
E
R
M
I
T
S

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
4
3
5
.
9
8
-
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
6
5
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
6
5
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
6
5
1
.
0
0

U
N
D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
E
D
 
A
P
P
R
O
P

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
0
-
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

O
T
H
E
R
 
P
R
O
F
.
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
4
-
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

O
T
H
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
1
-
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
2
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
2
7
.
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
P
R
O
M
O
T
I
O
N

2
9
7
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
8
-
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
6
9
.
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

S
T
A
F
F
 
T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
&
 
T
R
A
N
 
E
X
P

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 E
X
P
E
N
S
E
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
7
,
4
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
,
9
2
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
7
,
5
0
3
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
,
9
2
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
2
9
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
5
9
,
2
6
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
,
9
2
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
9
9
,
3
3
5
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
,
9
2
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
,
6
0
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
,
9
2
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
,
6
7
1
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
,
9
2
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

02
5



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
1
9
,
 
0
6
:
1
2
:
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
P
R
E
P
A
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
W
O
R
K
S
H
E
E
T
 
 
F
Y
2
0
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
1

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
G
M
6
0
1
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
O
R
 
F
I
S
C
A
L
 
Y
E
A
R
 
2
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
I
N
G
 
P
E
R
I
O
D
 
 
0
9
/
2
0
1
9

P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
B
Y
 
B
u
f
f
o
n
e
,
 
M
a
r
i
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
B
R
E
F
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
Y
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
Y
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
U
S
T
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
-
T
-
D
 
 
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
T
H
I
S
 
Y
E
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t

W
E
S
T
 
D
B
N
 
D
O
W
N
T
O
W
N
 
D
E
V
 
A
U
T

2
9
6
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
1
1
.
4
0
-
0
0
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
1
,
0
1
5
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
5
,
9
6
6
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
7
,
8
2
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
7
,
8
2
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
4
,
1
3
6
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
3
,
6
2
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
0
,
9
3
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
8
,
7
1
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
6
,
9
2
0
-

2
9
6
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
3
0
.
0
5
-
1
4
 
L
O
C
 
C
O
M
M
 
S
T
A
B
I
L
 
S
H
A
R
E
 
A
P
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
5
1
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
3
3
2
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
1
1
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
1
1
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
3
1
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
3
1
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
3
2
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
3
2
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
3
2
0
-

2
9
6
-
6
1
1
0
-
3
3
0
.
0
1
-
9
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
2
4
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
-

2
9
6
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
6
1
.
1
0
-
0
5
 
I
N
T
E
R
E
S
T
-
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
9
5
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
7
8
6
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
8
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
8
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
9
1
9
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
9
9
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
6
9
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
8
8
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
0
8
5
-

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
3
6
5
.
9
0
-
0
0
 
D
O
N
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
F
R
O
M
 
P
R
I
V
 
S
O
U
R
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
5
5
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
,
7
4
2
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
,
0
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
,
5
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
0
3
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
5
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
,
5
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
,
5
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
,
5
0
0
-

2
9
6
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
6
9
.
9
0
-
0
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
8
4
5
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
9
4
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
0
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
0
0
0
-

2
9
6
-
6
1
1
0
-
3
6
9
.
9
0
-
0
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
9
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
3
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
5
0
0
-

2
9
6
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
9
1
.
9
1
-
0
1
 
C
O
N
T
R
I
 
F
R
O
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
5
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
,
1
0
2
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
,
1
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
,
1
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
4
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
,
1
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
0
0
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
0
9
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
1
8
0
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
3
,
8
7
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
8
,
8
2
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
8
,
2
1
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
8
,
2
1
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
0
,
2
4
6
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
8
,
5
2
6
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
9
,
9
4
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
8
,
0
0
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
1
6
,
5
0
5
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
*
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
E
N
U
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
3
,
8
7
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
8
,
8
2
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
8
,
2
1
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
8
,
2
1
3
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
0
,
2
4
6
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
8
,
5
2
6
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
9
,
9
4
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
8
,
0
0
8
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
1
6
,
5
0
5
-

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
1
0
-
2
0
 
W
A
G
E
S
,
 
P
A
R
T
 
T
I
M
E
/
S
E
A
S
O
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
a
l
a
r
y
,
W
a
g
e
s
,
A
l
l
o
w
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
2
2
-
0
0
 
F
I
C
A
/
M
E
D
I
C
A
R
E
,
 
C
I
T
Y
 
S
H
A
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
2
6
-
0
0
 
W
O
R
K
E
R
S
 
C
O
M
P
 
C
O
N
T
R
I
B
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
e
r
s
o
n
n
e
l
 
S
r
v
s
-
B
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
6
-
2
9
7
2
-
4
6
3
.
3
4
-
9
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
,
1
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
,
8
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
,
8
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
,
8
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
9
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
9
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
9
2
0

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
0
-
4
0
 
A
U
D
I
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
0
-
9
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
P
R
O
F
.
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
4
-
9
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
6
,
8
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
3
,
6
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
6
,
2
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
1
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
5
,
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
2
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
9
,
8
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
8
,
8
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
5
,
3
2
6

2
9
6
-
6
1
1
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
4
-
9
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
1
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
,
0
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
-
P
r
o
f
&
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
u
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
7
,
4
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
1
,
1
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
1
,
9
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
7
,
4
6
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
4
,
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
7
,
9
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
8
,
1
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
7
,
1
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
3
,
6
4
6

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
4
3
-
8
2
 
C
O
P
I
E
R
S
 
R
 
&
 
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
p
a
i
r
 
&
 
M
a
i
n
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
4
4
-
1
0
 
B
U
I
L
D
I
N
G
 
R
E
N
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
1
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
n
t
a
l
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
1
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
0
1
0

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
1
-
0
0
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
P
R
O
M
O
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
4
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
1
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
2
,
7
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
8
,
7
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
,
1
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
8
,
7
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
1
,
3
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
,
3
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
4
,
5
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
P
r
o
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
4
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
1
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
2
,
7
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
8
,
7
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
,
1
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
8
,
7
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
1
,
3
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
,
3
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
4
,
5
4
5

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
2
-
1
0
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
I
N
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
7
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
&
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
7
0

02
6



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
1
9
,
 
0
6
:
1
2
:
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
P
R
E
P
A
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
W
O
R
K
S
H
E
E
T
 
 
F
Y
2
0
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
2

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
G
M
6
0
1
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
O
R
 
F
I
S
C
A
L
 
Y
E
A
R
 
2
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
I
N
G
 
P
E
R
I
O
D
 
 
0
9
/
2
0
1
9

P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
B
Y
 
B
u
f
f
o
n
e
,
 
M
a
r
i
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
B
R
E
F
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
Y
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
2
0
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
Y
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
Y
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
U
S
T
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
-
T
-
D
 
 
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
d
g
e
t

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
T
H
I
S
 
Y
E
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
8
-
1
0
 
S
T
A
F
F
 
T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
&
 
T
R
A
N
 
E
X
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
&
 
T
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
0
-
1
0
 
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
2
5

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
1
-
9
0
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
-
 
N
O
N
 
C
A
P
I
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
6
0
0

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
2
-
0
0
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
2
-
4
0
 
P
L
A
N
T
I
N
G
 
M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
2
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
,
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
,
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
0
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
&
 
M
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
9
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
9
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
9
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
9
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
7
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
7
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
7
2
5

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
5
-
0
0
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S
H
I
P
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
0

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
8
-
9
0
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
O
P
E
R
A
T
I
N
G
 
E
X
P
E
N
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
t
h
e
r
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
4
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
4
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
9
0

2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
8
0
.
9
2
-
7
5
 
B
R
O
W
N
F
I
E
L
D
 
F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
9
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
6
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
6
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
2
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
,
2
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
1
,
8
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
,
6
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
O
u
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
9
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
6
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
6
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
2
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
,
2
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
1
,
8
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
,
6
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
*
 
 
 
 
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
I
T
U
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
,
8
9
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
8
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
2
,
6
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
3
,
6
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
5
,
5
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
4
6
,
4
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
9
8
,
2
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
1
8
,
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
2
1
,
6
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

*
*
*
 
 
 
 
W
E
S
T
 
D
B
N
 
D
O
W
N
T
O
W
N
 
D
E
V
 
A
U
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
9
7
6
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
,
4
9
4
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
4
,
4
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
,
4
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
7
2
0
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
7
,
9
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
,
2
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
5
6

02
7



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
1
3
:
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
1
9
 
T
R
I
A
L
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
1

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
:
 
G
M
2
5
7
U
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
S
 
O
F
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
I
N
G
 
P
E
R
I
O
D
 
0
9
/
2
0
1
9

C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

F
U
N
D
 
2
9
6
 
W
E
S
T
 
D
B
N
 
D
O
W
N
T
O
W
N
 
D
E
V
 
A
U
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 1
0
1
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
A
S
S
E
T
S
 
/
 
E
Q
U
I
T
Y
 
I
N
 
P
O
O
L
E
D
 
C
A
S
H

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 1
,
0
2
4
,
6
5
0
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 1
1
5
 
0
1
 
0
0
 
 
A
/
R
 
/
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 6
,
7
0
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 1
9
9
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
R
E
V
E
N
U
E
 
/
 
R
E
V
E
N
U
E
 
S
U
M
M
A
R
Y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 7
1
0
,
2
4
4
.
5
7

 
 
 
 
 2
0
2
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
L
I
A
B
I
L
I
T
I
E
S
 
/
 
V
O
U
C
H
E
R
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 9
,
1
1
3
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 2
4
4
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
E
Q
U
I
T
Y
 
/
 
R
E
S
E
R
V
E
 
F
O
R
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 2
8
7
,
7
0
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 2
4
9
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
E
Q
U
I
T
Y
 
/
 
F
U
N
D
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 7
0
7
,
5
2
2
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 2
5
1
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
E
Q
U
I
T
Y
 
/
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
 
S
U
M
M
A
R
Y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 2
8
7
,
7
0
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 2
5
2
 
0
0
 
0
0
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
E
Q
U
I
T
Y
 
/
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
I
T
U
R
E
 
S
U
M
M
A
R
Y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 3
9
5
,
5
2
5
.
6
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
1
4
,
5
9
0
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
1
4
,
5
9
0
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
I
S
 
I
N
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

02
8



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
1
3
:
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
R
I
A
L
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
1

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
:
 
G
M
2
5
7
U
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
O
R
 
F
I
S
C
A
L
 
Y
E
A
R
 
2
0
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
I
N
G
 
P
E
R
I
O
D
 
0
9
/
2
0
1
9

C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
S
 
O
F
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 I
N
D
E
X
 
T
O
 
F
U
N
D
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S

 
 
F
U
N
D
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E

 
 
 
2
9
6
 
 
W
E
S
T
 
D
B
N
 
D
O
W
N
T
O
W
N
 
D
E
V
 
A
U
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

02
9



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
1
3
:
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
 
M
A
S
T
E
R
 
L
I
S
T
I
N
G
 
B
Y
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
1

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
:
 
G
M
1
5
2
L

C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
I
N
C
L
U
D
E
S
 
U
N
P
O
S
T
E
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
S

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
Q
U
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
I
N
G

 
 
 
 
 
 P
.
O
.
 
N
U
M
 
 
E
N
C
 
D
A
T
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1
9
 
2
9
6
-
2
9
7
2
-
4
6
3
.
3
4
-
9
0

 
0
9
4
9
4
3
 
 
1
0
/
0
5
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
5
1
5
5
 
 
F
A
I
R
L
A
N
E
 
G
R
O
U
N
D
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
9
2
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
8
4
0
.
0
0

1
9
 
2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
4
-
9
0

 
0
9
4
1
0
6
 
 
0
7
/
0
2
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
3
9
6
9
 
 
P
O
W
 
S
T
R
A
T
E
G
I
E
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
,
7
1
4
.
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
,
3
5
7
.
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
3
5
7
.
0
7

 
0
9
4
7
1
2
 
 
0
7
/
0
2
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
6
2
0
 
 
T
A
N
N
E
R
 
F
R
I
E
D
M
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
1
0
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
5
8
.
5
0

 
0
9
4
9
4
3
 
 
1
0
/
0
5
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
5
1
5
5
 
 
F
A
I
R
L
A
N
E
 
G
R
O
U
N
D
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
6
,
8
8
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
,
4
4
3
.
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
,
4
4
0
.
2
2

 
0
9
5
6
6
6
 
 
0
8
/
1
6
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
2
5
8
5
 
 
C
A
M
P
B
E
L
L
'
S
 
C
L
E
A
N
I
N
G
 
C
O
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
0
2
2
 
 
1
1
/
0
6
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
9
3
8
 
 
P
R
E
M
I
U
M
 
L
A
W
N
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
,
0
4
0
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
9
5
9
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
0
,
1
6
4
.
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
8
,
3
9
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
1
,
7
6
5
.
5
4

1
9
 
2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
4
4
-
1
0

 
0
9
5
7
2
6
 
 
0
8
/
2
9
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
1
9
3
7
 
 
A
R
T
S
P
A
C
E
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
1
0
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
2
9
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
1
2
.
5
0

1
9
 
2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
5
1
-
0
0

 
0
9
5
0
2
3
 
 
0
7
/
0
2
/
1
8
 
0
0
7
9
0
3
5
 
 
S
W
A
N
K
 
M
O
T
I
O
N
 
P
I
C
T
U
R
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
0
0

 
0
9
5
1
3
8
 
 
0
7
/
0
9
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
5
0
9
8
 
 
L
E
A
D
E
R
 
P
R
I
N
T
I
N
G
 
A
N
D
 
M
A
I
L
I
N
G
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
5
0

 
0
9
5
1
6
3
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
5
2
6
5
 
 
O
C
T
A
N
E
 
D
E
S
I
G
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
5
,
1
4
3
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
7
2
3
.
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
6
,
4
1
9
.
6
4

 
0
9
5
7
8
9
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
5
2
0
1
 
 
R
O
C
K
E
T
 
C
O
P
Y
 
P
R
I
N
T
 
S
H
O
P
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
5
7
9
0
 
 
0
9
/
1
4
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
9
4
6
 
 
B
E
S
H
A
R
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
6
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
3
.
2
5

 
0
9
5
8
4
3
 
 
0
9
/
2
8
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
5
2
3
6
 
 
B
R
I
G
H
T
 
S
K
Y
 
C
R
E
A
T
I
V
E
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
5
8
5
4
 
 
0
9
/
2
8
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
5
3
8
6
 
 
N
A
Y
E
L
I
 
G
L
I
T
Z
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
3
.
0
0

 
0
9
5
8
6
1
 
 
0
9
/
2
8
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
9
9
3
 
 
I
H
E
A
R
T
 
M
E
D
I
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
4
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
0
0

 
0
9
5
9
1
6
 
 
1
0
/
1
1
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
9
3
9
 
 
V
I
S
U
A
L
 
R
O
N
I
N
 
M
E
D
I
A
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
0
1
1
 
 
1
1
/
0
2
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
9
4
6
 
 
B
E
S
H
A
R
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
3
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
9
.
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
5
0

 
0
9
6
0
1
9
 
 
1
1
/
0
5
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
4
9
4
8
 
 
B
R
I
T
T
E
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
3
4
.
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
.
2
6

 
0
9
6
1
2
4
 
 
1
2
/
2
0
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
3
7
4
4
 
 
B
A
M
B
O
O
Z
L
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
2
9
5
 
 
0
2
/
1
3
/
1
9
 
0
0
3
1
7
2
9
 
 
G
A
I
L
 
&
 
R
I
C
E
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
7
5
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
3
1
5
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
1
9
 
0
0
1
4
5
8
9
 
 
M
A
L
K
O
M
E
D
I
A
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
3
1
6
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
1
9
 
0
0
1
0
3
7
3
 
 
T
H
E
 
H
E
N
R
Y
 
F
O
R
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
0
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
3
3
0
 
 
0
2
/
2
6
/
1
9
 
0
0
1
5
2
3
6
 
 
B
R
I
G
H
T
 
S
K
Y
 
C
R
E
A
T
I
V
E
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0

 
0
9
6
3
3
3
 
 
0
2
/
2
6
/
1
9
 
0
0
1
2
9
8
3
 
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
H
O
U
S
E
 
P
U
B
L
I
S
H
E
R
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
3
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
3
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
3
,
6
0
8
.
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
,
3
4
5
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
2
6
2
.
6
5

1
9
 
2
9
6
-
6
1
0
0
-
9
1
1
.
6
2
-
4
0

 
0
9
4
9
4
3
 
 
1
0
/
0
5
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
5
1
5
5
 
 
F
A
I
R
L
A
N
E
 
G
R
O
U
N
D
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
,
0
2
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
2
0
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
0
0
0
.
0
1

1
9
 
2
9
6
-
6
1
1
0
-
9
1
1
.
3
4
-
9
0

 
0
9
5
1
9
9
 
 
0
7
/
0
2
/
1
8
 
0
0
1
1
4
2
4
 
 
B
R
E
N
D
E
L
S
 
S
E
P
T
I
C
 
T
A
N
K
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
7
9
.
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
0
.
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
.
2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
5
,
1
0
0
.
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
,
3
9
0
.
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
,
7
0
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
5
,
1
0
0
.
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
,
3
9
0
.
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
,
7
0
9
.
9
7

03
0



P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
 
 
 
3
/
0
9
/
1
9
,
 
 
6
:
1
3
:
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
T
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
A
R
B
O
R
N
,
 
M
I
C
H
I
G
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
1

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
 
D
M
1
8
9
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
F
O
R
 
F
/
Y
 
2
0
1
9
 
F
U
N
D
 
2
9
6
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
 
 
 
A
L
L
 
A
C
T
I
V
E
 
O
N
L
Y

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
/
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
I
O
R
 
Y
E
A
R
S
'
 
 
 
 
 
C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 
Y
E
A
R
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
E
N
C
U
M
B
E
R
E
D

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
T
U
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 .
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 F
U
N
D
 
0
0
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

 
 
 
 
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 =
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
 
 
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

03
1



EAST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Sculpture Initiative 2019 

 Date Adopted:  Moved by:  Seconded by:  

WHEREAS:   The East Dearborn Downtown Development Authority (EDDDA) counts among its duties 
the beautification of its district; and 

 
WHEREAS:   The EDDDA has participated in the annual Midwest Sculpture Initiative since 2010, but 

has expressed interest in acquiring art for permanent placement  in the district; 
 
WHEREAS:   The EDDDA approved foregoing the Midwest Sculpture Initiative for the 2019 season to 

explore other artist options with the Nordin Brothers;  
 
RESOLVED:   That the EDDDA approves an amount not to exceed $5,900.00 from Community 

Promotions fund 297-6100-911-51-00 as a contribution to the Dearborn Community 
Fund to participate in the sculpture initiative with the Nordin Brothers for year two of 
two. 

 

Yes:  
No:  
Abstain: 
Absent:     

 

 
 

032



WEST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Sculpture Initiative 2019 

 Date Adopted:  Moved by:  Seconded by:  

WHEREAS:   The West Dearborn Downtown Development Authority (WDDDA) counts among its 
duties the beautification of its district; and 

 
WHEREAS:   The WDDDA has participated in the annual Midwest Sculpture Initiative since 2010, but 

has expressed interest in acquiring art for permanent placement in the district; 
 
WHEREAS:   The WDDDA approved foregoing the Midwest Sculpture Initiative for the 2019 season to 

explore other artist options with the Nordin Borthers;  
 
RESOLVED:   That the WDDDA approves an amount not to exceed $5,900.00 from Community 

Promotions fund 296-6100-911-51-00 as a contribution to the Dearborn Community 
Fund to participate in the sculpture initiative with the Nordin Brothers for year two of 
two. 

 

Yes:  
No:  
Abstain: 
Absent:     

 

 
 

033



EAST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

DDDAs’ Sponsorship Policies   Date Adopted:   Resolution by:   
WHEREAS: The East Dearborn Downtown Development Authority (EDDDA) seeks to establish a policy to guide decisions on which sponsorship opportunities to pursue; and  
WHEREAS:  The EDDDA seeks to establish fair and transparent protocols regarding sponsorship opportunities; and   
WHEREAS:   The EDDDA understands that the WDDDA can be either a sponsor-provider or a sponsor-seeker at different times; be it 
RESOLVED:   The EDDDA adopts the Sponsor-Provider Policy presented that establishes the criteria and decision making process that the EDDDA will utilize when receiving sponsorship requests from other organizations; further be it   
RESOLVED:  The EDDDA adopts the Sponsor-Seeker Policy that establishes the criteria and decision making process that the EDDDA will utilize when approaching other organizations to serve as sponsors of the DDDAs.  
 Yes:  No:     Abstained:   Absent:  Adopted:  

034



WEST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

DDDAs’ Sponsorship Policies   Date Adopted:   Resolution by:   
WHEREAS: The West Dearborn Downtown Development Authority (WDDDA) seeks to establish a policy to guide decisions on which sponsorship opportunities to pursue; and  
WHEREAS:  The WDDDA seeks to establish fair and transparent protocols regarding sponsorship opportunities; and   
WHEREAS:   The WDDDA understands that the WDDDA can be either a sponsor-provider or a sponsor-seeker at different times; be it 
RESOLVED:   The WDDDA adopts the Sponsor-Provider Policy presented that establishes the criteria and decision making process that the WDDDA will utilize when receiving sponsorship requests from other organizations; further be it   
RESOLVED:  The WDDDA adopts the Sponsor-Seeker Policy that establishes the criteria and decision making process that the WDDDA will utilize when approaching other organizations to serve as sponsors of the DDDAs.  
 Yes:  No:     Abstained:   Absent:  Adopted:  

035



EAST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Shop Small Banner Installation by WH Canon  Date Adopted:   Resolution by:   
WHEREAS: The WDDDA and EDDDA recognize the benefit of marketing and promoting activities and events in the district; and  
WHEREAS:  The Department of Public Works was unable to provide services to hang banners on Michigan Ave. in time to promote the Shop Small event; and  
 

WHEREAS:   The EDDDA is contracted and maintains a relationship with WH Canon who provide landscaping services in the EDDDA and were available for banner installation; be it 
RESOLVED:  the EDDDA and WDDDA will pay WH Canon a total of $2,560 for Shop Small Banner Installation split evenly between the districts; be it further  
RESOLVED: the EDDDA will pay their portion, $1,280 with money previously allocated to WH Canon’s comprehensive landscaping contract for FYE 2019.    

 Yes:  No:    Abstained:  Absent:  Adopted:  
 

036



WEST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Shop Small Banner Installation by WH Canon  Date Adopted:   Resolution by:   
WHEREAS: The WDDDA and EDDDA recognize the benefit of marketing and promoting activities and events in the district; and  
WHEREAS:  The Department of Public Works was unable to provide services to hang banners on Michigan Ave. in time to promote the Shop Small event; and  
 

WHEREAS:   The EDDDA is contracted and maintains a relationship with WH Canon who provide landscaping services in the EDDDA and were available for banner installation; be it 
RESOLVED:  the EDDDA and WDDDA will pay WH Canon a total of $2,560 for Shop Small Banner Installation split evenly between the districts; be it further  
RESOLVED: the WDDDA allocates $1,280 to WH Canon for Banner Installation from account 296-6100-911-51-00 General Marketing/Banners.    

 Yes:  No:    Abstained:  Absent:  Adopted:  
 
 

037



EAST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Ladies Night Event 2019 
 Moved by:  Seconded by:  
WHEREAS: The WDDDA and EDDDA recognize the benefit of Marketing and Promoting businesses and activities in the District; and  

WHEREAS: The EDDDA and WDDDA are planning the Ladies Night Event on May 1, 2019, in both downtown districts to highlight the retail shopping experience in Downtown Dearborn; and  
WHEREAS: The EDDDA and WDDDA reviewed and rejected a projected budget of $6,755 in expenditures and $2000 in income for Ladies Night to be shared equally between the EDDDA and WDDDA; and  
WHEREAS:  The EDDDA and WDDDA approved a budget of $1,855 for Ladies Night at the January 17, 2019 board meeting which did not include funds for radio promotion; and  
WHEREAS:  The benefit to promoting this event via radio would be beneficial to participation; and 
WHEREAS: The EDDDA and WDDDA will again review the projected budget of $6,755 in expenditures and $2,000 in income for Ladies Night, which includes an allocation of $5,000 split between the EDDDA and WDDDA for radio promotion; be it 
RESOLVED:  1. That the EDDDA obligates $3,377.50 in expenditures for the Ladies Night event from the Community Promotions Budget # 297-6100-911-51-00 for FYE2019; and  

 2. The EDDDA will acknowledge receipt of funds for the Ladies Night event up to $1000 in FYE2019.  3. The EDDDA Executive Director is authorized to administer, sign contracts and expend the funds for the 2019 Ladies Night event as presented. 
 

038



Vendor Purpose Amount 

Live Entertainment TBD Live music for Artspace $ 300.00 

Beshara Printing Posters and brochure $ 330.00 

Malko Media banners $ 150.00 

Oriental Trading lei's for participants $ 100.00 

Facebook via POW! Strategies Social Media $200.00 

Sarieni Photography photography $ 500.00 

iHeart Radio Advertising $5000.00 

Misc. Supplies Badges, leis, refreshments, décor $275.00 

 

Yes:  
No:   
Abstained:  
Absent:   
Adopted:  
 

039



WEST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Ladies Night Event 2019 

 Moved by:  Seconded by:  
WHEREAS: The WDDDA and EDDDA recognize the benefit of Marketing and Promoting businesses and activities in the District; and  

WHEREAS: The EDDDA and WDDDA are planning the Ladies Night Event on May 1, 2019, in both downtown districts to highlight the retail shopping experience in Downtown Dearborn; and  
WHEREAS: The EDDDA and WDDDA reviewed and rejected a projected budget of $6,755 in expenditures and $2000 in income for Ladies Night to be shared equally between the EDDDA and WDDDA; and  
WHEREAS:  The EDDDA and WDDDA approved a budget of $1,855 for Ladies Night at the January 17, 2019 board meeting which did not include funds for radio promotion; and  
WHEREAS:  The benefit to promoting this event via radio would be beneficial to participation; and 
WHEREAS: The EDDDA and WDDDA will again review the projected budget of $6,755 in expenditures and $2,000 in income for Ladies Night, which includes an allocation of $5,000 split between the EDDDA and WDDDA for radio promotion; be it 
RESOLVED:  1. That the WDDDA obligates $3,377.50 in expenditures for the Ladies Night event from the Community Promotions Budget # 296-6100-911-51-00 for FYE2019; and  

 2. The WDDDA will acknowledge receipt of funds for the Ladies Night event up to $1000 in FYE2019.  3. The WDDDA Executive Director is authorized to administer, sign contracts and expend the funds for the 2019 Ladies Night event as presented. 
 

040



Vendor Purpose Amount 

Live Entertainment TBD Live music for Artspace $ 300.00 

Beshara Printing Posters and brochure $ 330.00 

Malko Media banners $ 150.00 

Oriental Trading lei's for participants $ 100.00 

Facebook via POW! Strategies Social Media $200.00 

Sarieni Photography photography $ 500.00 

iHeart Radio Advertising $5000.00 

Misc. Supplies Badges, leis, refreshments, décor $275.00 

 

Yes:  
No:   
Abstained:  
Absent:   
Adopted:  
 

 
 

041



EAST DEARBORN 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
FYE 2020-22 BUDGET 

Moved by:  
Seconded by:  

 
WHEREAS:   Section 28 of Public Act 197 of 1975, Public Act 57 of 2018 requires that the Directors of 

the East Dearborn Downtown Development Authority (EDDDA) prepare and submit an 
operating budget for the EDDDA each year; and  

WHEREAS:   The City of Dearborn has now implemented the submission of a 3-year budget which the 
EDDDA along with other City of Dearborn departments will adopt; and  

WHEREAS:   The EDDDA fund balance, along with projected FYE 2020-2022 revenues, is sufficient to 
support the proposed budget; be it 

RESOLVED:   That unexpended FYE2019 appropriations shall be carried forward for completion of 
EDDDA activities initiated by June 30, 2019; and be it further 

RESOLVED:  That the EDDDA approves the attached FYE 2020-2022 budget to be submitted to the 
Dearborn City Council for adoption.  

Yes:  
No:   
Abstained:  
Absent:   
Date:  

042



WEST DEARBORN 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
FYE 2020-22 BUDGET 

Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
WHEREAS:   Section 28 of Public Act 197 of 1975, Public Act 57 of 2018 requires that the Directors of 

the West Dearborn Downtown Development Authority (WDDDA) prepare and submit an 
operating budget for the WDDDA each year; and  

WHEREAS:   The City of Dearborn has now implemented the submission of a 3-year budget which the 
WDDDA along with other City of Dearborn departments will adopt; and  

WHEREAS:   The WDDDA fund balance, along with projected FYE 2020-2022 revenues, is sufficient to 
support the proposed budget; be it 

RESOLVED:   That unexpended FYE2019 appropriations shall be carried forward for completion of 
WDDDA activities initiated by June 30, 2019; and be it further 

RESOLVED:  That the WDDDA approves the attached FYE 2020-2022 budget to be submitted to the 
Dearborn City Council for adoption.  

Yes:  
No:   
Abstained:  
Absent:   
Date:   

 

043



04
4



04
5



04
6



04
7



04
8



04
9



05
0



05
1



05
2



05
3



EAST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Trash Receptacles 2019 

 Date Adopted:  Moved by:  Seconded by:  

WHEREAS:  The East Dearborn Downtown Development Authority (EDDDA) wishes to advocate and 

promote a clean, safe and attractive downtown by repairing and purchasing and 

installing trash receptacles throughout the district; and 

WHEREAS:  The City of Dearborn Department of Public Works (DPW) has indicated that upon 

purchase, it can regularly service and maintain up to approximately thirty (30) 

receptacles in East Downtown; and 

WHEREAS:  The EDDDA Design Committee approved staff recommendations for locations of at least 

twenty-five (25) trash receptacles throughout the district; be it  

RESOLVED:  The EDDDA Board empowers the Design Committee to choose a trash receptacle 

vendor and model for up to 25 receptacles for the East Downtown Dearborn district; 

and be it further 

RESOLVED:  The EDDDA authorizes an amount not to exceed $10,958 from the Streetscape 

Amenities budget line item for the purchase and repair of trash receptacles. 

 

Yes:  
No:  
Abstain: 
Absent:     

054



EAST DEARBORN 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Tree Well Removal  

Adopted:  

Resolution by: 

Seconded:   

WHEREAS:  The EDDDA established a plan for tree well removal in order to encourage businesses to 
establish outdoor sidewalk cafes along Michigan Avenue; and  

WHEREAS:  The EDDDA and WDDDA are considering a new business incentives in which sidewalk cafes 
could be applicable for funding; and  

WHEREAS:  The EDDDA has $7,700 remaining in FYE2019 in business incentives; and therefore be it 

RESOLVED: The EDDDA authorizes $7,700 in FYE2019 from business incentives to tree well removal and 
that funding be designated to business applicants through the business incentive program with final 
approval of applicants from the EDDDA.  

 
Yes:  
No:   
Abstained: 
Resolution:   
 

055



WEST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Farm to Table 2019 Point of Sale System Date Adopted: Moved by: Seconded by: 
WHEREAS:   The WDDDA, desires to host a Farm to Table event in May 2019, featuring local ingredients, chefs, and restaurant items to promote the district assets and businesses; and  
WHEREAS: At the January 17, 2019 board meeting, the WDDDA Board authorized the expenditure of an amount not to exceed $12,000 in expenditures from the Community Promotions/W. Village Commons Events budget #296-6100-911-51-00 for the production and promotion of the 2019 Farm to Table event with the service providers listed below; and  
WHEREAS: The WDDDA does not have a point of sale system that would allow for the purchase of online tickets and silent auction items on-site; and 
WHEREAS: The Dearborn Area Chamber of Commerce does have a point of sale system that could be used by the WDDDA with the agreement that the Chamber of Commerce will receive 5% of total sales for tickets and auction items paid through credit card processing system; additionally, WDDDA agrees to pay any fees associated with processing of payments incurred by processing company, therefore be it 
RESOLVED: The WDDDA agrees to use the Chamber of Commerce’s point of sale system and will give the Chamber 5% of total sales from tickets and auction items paid through credit card processing system and will cover the processing fees; and be it further 
RESOLVED: The WDDDA authorizes the executive director to execute a contract on behalf of the WDDDA with the Dearborn Area Chamber of Commerce for use of the point of sale system, contingent upon review and approval by Corporation Counsel. Yes: No: Abstained: Absent: Adopted: 

056



Open Door Dearborn
Business Grants    

DOWNTOWN DEARBORN 

Funded by the East & West Dearborn Downtown Development Authorities 

application & guidelines  

�  OVERVIEW

The East & West Dearborn Downtown Development Authorities (DDDAs) were created to promote and

enhance the commercial core of the community, to preserve public investment and to improve the

viability of businesses within the DDDA Districts.

Our grant program provides funding to property owners and new businesses moving to the DDDA

Districts or existing businesses within the district.

Grant Types and Levels Include:

● Level 1 - Design Incentives Available Up to $2500

○ Exterior Design Assistance

○ Signage Improvement

● Level 2 - Business Start-Up Incentives Available Up to $5,000

○ Retail Start-Ups

○ Arts, Culture and Creative Businesses

○ Incubators

○ Pop Ups

● Level 3 - Design Incentives Available Up to 20% of Costs, Not Exceeding $10,000 Reimbursement

○ Facade Improvement - Up to $10,000

○ Expansion/Development - Up to $10,000

{Expansion is defined as:   Adding square footage to an existing building, acquisition of neighboring

property, addition of outdoor seating or service areas that thereby add taxable value to the property; or

moving to a larger facility within the district. }

Businesses must meet the following eligibility criteria.

001



 

�  ELIGIBILITY

● Owners or new tenants that are moving to the DDDA Districts

● Owners or tenants of property currently located within the DDDA Districts and are expanding

● Tenants must apply jointly with property owners

CONDITIONS OF ELIGIBILITY

The property owner must be current on all City, County and State property and income taxes

and all other City accounts.

Approved applicants shall additionally sign an “Agreement to Comply with the

Commencement and Completion Timetable” as a condition of approval for any funding

and shall be subject to all program guidelines and all amendments thereto. The

commencement and completion dates will be “best guess” estimates that are mutually

acceptable to the applicant and DDA.

● Levels 1 & 2 - All work must commence within 60 days and be completed

within six (6) months from the date the grant is awarded. At its discretion, the

DDA reserves the right to cancel or extend the commitment.

● Level 3 - In the event that actual physical construction on a project has not

commenced within 60 days of the DDDA funding commitment date, or if a

project has not been completed and has not been granted a Certificate of

Completion within one year (365 days) of the DDDA funding commitment date,

the DDDA will evaluate the status of that project. At its discretion, the DDDA

reserves the right to cancel or extend the commitment.

Maximum grant funding given to one business cannot exceed $10,000.00. New applicants will be

given priority over applicants that have previously received grants from the DDDAs. If a

commercial building under one ownership is a multi-tenant building, each separate unit with an

individual storefront façade and an independent ground floor entry shall be eligible. However,

funds shall not exceed $30,000 for the entire building. If the owner or tenant of a building, which

occupies more than sixty (60) feet of storefront, the DDDA Boards may award additional funds at

its discretion.

This is a competitive grant process and projects with a higher ratio of private to public

002



investment will be given preference.

Grant proposals must provide the DDDAs with photographs of aesthetic

improvements before and after the completion of work. Photographs

must be taken from the same vantage point. These photographs will be

used by the DDDAs for marketing purposes.

Grants will not be awarded for physical improvements and work

completed prior to grant application date, except for pre-authorized exploration of

viability of historical or existing character on building materials that informs the budget

proposal.

All work must comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, building codes, and zoning ordinances

and contractor or owner must secure proper permits prior to commencement of work.

Once a grant is awarded, grant recipients must display the DDDA Grant Award Signage in

the window on the pedestrian side, in plain view of the public. Signage must remain in place

a minimum of 60 days after the completion of funded project.

Within a 5 (five)-year period, a property address may not apply for funds more than twice for

the same store unit unless a change in business ownership occurs

● The total amount awarded to a property and tenant for the same store unit address,

during a 5 (five)-year period, may not exceed $10,000.

● Whenever the property ownership changes, the new owner is eligible for funds.

When a change of ownership occurs, the DDDAs may consider factors such  as prior

improvements and further eligibility shall be at the sole discretion of the DDDA

Boards. A new 5 (five) year timetable and $10,000 maximum would apply to the new

owner without concern for the application of guidelines to the former owner, and

provided all other guidelines are adhered to.

● Whenever the business tenant changes, a new tenant becomes eligible for funds. A

new 5 (five) year timetable and a maximum of $10,000 would apply to the new

tenant without concern for the application of guidelines on the previous tenant and

provided all other guidelines are adhered to.

At the DDDA discretion, an exception to any guideline may be granted in the event of

special conditions or situations.

All projects are subject to audit by the City of Dearborn.

All Design and Facade Improvements Grants must adhere to the DDA Design Guidelines. The

DDDAs will use these Design Guidelines and the City of Dearborn codes to judge grant

awardees..

Projects will be funded to the extent that budgeted funding is available.

003



Applicants must submit a current copy of business plan and be available

to attend a DDDAs grant sub-committee meeting. Applicants are also

invited to attend the DDDA monthly meeting at which their grant is

brought to the DDDA Board. The DDDA Director will contact you

regarding appointment times.

ELIGIBLE COSTS FOR LEVEL 1 DESIGN IMPROVEMENTS

● Professional design fees (Architectural, interior design or landscape)

● Exploratory research and costs related to  historically significant buildings

● Restoration of historically significant signage

● Signage design

● New signage installation

● Signage lighting and electrical

ELIGIBLE COSTS FOR LEVEL 2 BUSINESS START- UPS

● All items in Level 1

● Repair, replacement or addition of windows, doors, walls, or other appropriate architectural

elements.

● Interior painting

● interior lighting

● Conversion of storefront

● Restoration of historic elements (both interior and exterior)

● Construction or installation of interior partition walls, flooring and ceiling systems

● Construction or installation of ADA facilities

● Construction or installation of bathrooms

● Installation or upgrades to energy efficient heating and cooling systems

● Installation of fixed artwork

● Installation of bike racks

● All materials and labor for work performed in association with above-mentioned

improvements  

ELIGIBLE COSTS FOR LEVEL 3 DESIGN IMPROVEMENTS

● All items in Level 1

● Repair, replacement or addition of windows, doors, walls, or other appropriate architectural

elements.

● Exterior painting

● Awnings or exterior canopies

● Exterior or interior lighting

● Masonry repair, cleaning or paint removal

● Conversion of storefront

● New outdoor café seating

● Restoration of historic elements (both interior and exterior)

● Removal of historically inaccurate facade treatments

● Professional design fees (Architectural, interior design or landscape)

004



AAA
N

M
 S

um
m

er
 F

es
tiv

a
20

20

00
5



AABOUT
WW

he
re

 d
id

 th
e 

id
ea

 s
pr

ou
t f

ro
m

?

-
A 

na
tu

ra
l p

ro
gr

es
si

on
: A

AN
M

 h
as

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d/

pr
es

en
te

d 
ar

tis
tic

 c
on

ve
ni

ng
s,

 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

, f
oo

d 
pr

og
ra

m
s,

 a
rti

sa
n 

fa
irs

, a
nd

 
co

nc
er

ts
 b

y 
an

d 
fo

r A
ra

b 
Am

er
ic

an
s 

na
tio

na
lly

 +
 lo

ca
lly

 in
 v

ar
io

us
 fo

rm
s 

an
d 

si
ze

s 
fo

r y
ea

rs
-

AA
N

M
 h

as
 c

re
di

bl
y 

pr
od

uc
ed

 C
on

ce
rt 

of
 C

ol
or

s 
fo

r m
an

y 
ye

ar
s

-
Th

is
 fe

st
iv

al
 d

ra
w

s 
on

 s
ta

ff’
s 

ex
pe

rti
se

 
pr

es
en

tin
g 

af
or

em
en

tio
ne

d 
ev

en
ts

 in
 a

n 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 fo

rm
at

 c
lo

se
ly

 a
lig

ne
d 

w
ith

 A
AN

M
’s

 
m

is
si

on
, v

is
io

n,
 a

nd
 v

al
ue

s.
-

An
 o

ng
oi

ng
 g

oa
l t

o 
fu

se
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

nd
 

na
tio

na
l

00
6



00
7



AABOUT (cont.)
WW

ho
 is

 o
ur

 ta
rg

et
 a

ud
ie

nc
e,

 a
nd

 w
hy

?

-
18

-3
5 

ye
ar

 o
ld

 lo
ca

l +
 N

at
io

na
l A

ra
b 

Am
er

ic
an

s 
an

d 
al

lie
s

-
Pr

im
ar

y 
na

tio
na

l m
us

ic
 fe

st
iv

al
 a

ge
 ra

ng
e 

(th
in

k 
Bo

nn
ar

oo
, S

ou
th

 x
 S

ou
th

w
es

t, 
Lo

lla
pa

lo
oz

a)
, I

G
 fo

od
ie

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

-
Fi

lls
 a

 v
oi

d 
fo

r t
hi

s 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 n

ot
 o

nl
y 

lo
ca

lly
, b

ut
 n

at
io

na
lly

-
A 

ho
m

ec
om

in
g 

fo
r A

ra
bs

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

U
.S

. a
nd

 
co

nt
’d

 s
ou

rc
e 

of
 p

rid
e 

fo
r l

oc
al

 c
om

m
un

ity
-

Lo
ca

l a
ud

ie
nc

es
 o

f a
ll 

ag
es

/e
th

ni
ci

tie
s 

w
ill 

di
sc

ov
er

 a
rti

st
s/

bu
si

ne
ss

es
/A

AN
M

 v
ia

 a
 

FR
EE

 p
la

ce
m

ak
in

g 
ev

en
t

Pa
rtn

er
s:

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
D

ea
rb

or
n,

 S
po

tif
y’

s 
Ar

ab
 

H
ub

 (T
BC

), 
D

et
ro

it 
In

st
itu

te
 o

f A
rts

 (T
BC

)
00
8



00
9



AABOUT (cont.)
SSt

ru
ct

ur
e:

 

-
Ap

pr
ox

. 2
pm

-
10

pm
: O

ng
oi

ng
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
s 

by
 

di
ve

rs
e,

 c
on

te
m

po
ra

ry
 N

at
io

na
l A

ra
b 

Am
er

ic
an

 a
nd

 A
ra

bo
ph

on
e 

m
us

ic
ia

ns
 in

 C
ity

 
H

al
l P

ar
k

-
C

on
cu

rre
nt

 v
en

do
r m

ar
ke

t f
ea

t. 
lo

ca
l A

ra
b 

Am
er

ic
an

 fo
od

 v
en

do
rs

 a
nd

 a
rti

sa
ns

 o
n 

M
ap

le
 

St
re

et
-

C
on

cu
rre

nt
 li

ve
 p

ai
nt

in
g 

+ 
de

m
on

st
ra

tio
ns

-
Ar

tis
t T

al
ks

 +
 w

or
ks

ho
ps

 in
si

de
 A

AN
M

-
D

et
ro

it2
D

ub
ai

/P
al

es
tin

e 
si

m
ul

ca
st

 p
ar

ty
 to

 
ki

ck
 o

ff 
ev

en
t a

t 1
2:

00
 p

.m
. o

n 
Sa

tu
rd

ay
-

VI
P 

br
un

ch
 o

n 
AA

N
M

 T
er

ra
ce

 o
n 

Su
nd

ay
-

O
th

er
 fu

n 
of

fe
rin

gs
 li

ke
 m

od
er

n 
he

nn
a,

 c
up

 
re

ad
in

gs
, e

tc
.

01
0



01
1



MMAP

01
2



GGOALS
Pr

om
ot

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 e
co

no
m

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

vi
a 

pu
bl

ic
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

& 
ar

tis
ts

Sh
ow

ca
se

 A
AN

M
 +

 E
as

t D
ea

rb
or

n 
as

 a
 

re
gi

on
al

 a
nd

 n
at

io
na

l h
ub

 fo
r A

ra
b 

an
d 

Ar
ab

 A
m

er
ic

an
 a

rt 
an

d 
cu

ltu
re

Ad
va

nc
e 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
D

ea
rb

or
n’

s 
sh

ar
ed

 
ec

on
om

ic
, p

hy
si

ca
l, 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 v

is
io

n 
fo

r E
as

t D
ea

rb
or

n 
as

 a
 w

el
co

m
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 w
ith

 ri
ch

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
tra

di
tio

ns
 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
vi

si
to

rs
 to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 

AA
N

M
 p

ro
gr

am
s

01
3



MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
To:  Cristina Sheppard-Decius 
 
CC:   Chair, East Dearborn Downtown Development Authority 
  Chair, West Dearborn Downtown Development Authority 
 
From:   EmmaJean Woodyard, Dearborn Community Fund (DCF) Director 
 
Subject:  Sculpture Initiative 2018-2020 and Beyond 
 
Date:  March 1, 2019 
 
 
2019-20 is the second year of a two year sculpture lease agreement with the Detroit Design Center 
(Nordin Brothers). All sculptures will remain in place through May 2020. The sculptures are located in 
the East and West Downtowns and at the Ford Community & Performing Arts Center.  
 
Attached is the I SPY Card which highlights the sculptures in addition to other public art located in our 
downtown areas. The cards are distributed to students who participate in sculpture and writing 
workshops planned and coordinated by the DCF. Upon completion of the current initiative in May 2020, 
more than 600 students will have participated in the sculpture and writing workshops held at the Ford 
Community & Performing Arts Center. The workshops include teacher/student mentoring prior to the 
actual “hands on” workshops. Select pieces of sculpture and writing will be included in the Youth Arts 
Festival scheduled for Wednesday, April 24 at the Center.  

I Spy cards are available in public buildings and a downloadable version is available at 
www.dearborncommunityfund.org.  

Looking ahead to 2020-21, I would like to schedule a meeting as soon as possible with all parties 
concerned with the “Art in Public Places” – Sculpture Initiative to plan for future opportunities.  

Thank you.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

014



A
 p

ro
je

ct
 o

f 
th

e
 D

e
a

rb
o

rn
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 F
u

n
d

 (
D

C
F
) 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 D

e
a

rb
o

rn
, 

th
e
 E

a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a

rb
o

rn
 

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

a
ll

 1
6

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c 

a
rt

 

w
o

rk
s
 i

n
 D

e
a

rb
o

rn
?

C
h
e

ck
 t

h
e

 b
o
x
e

s 
a

s 
y
o

u
 

sp
o

t 
th

e
 a

rt
w

o
rk

 i
n
 l

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

EAST DEARBORN
WEST DEARBORN

1 2

3
4

5
6

7
1

. 
“A

n
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 E

x
ch

a
n

g
e

”
 

  
  

 B
ra

in
 L

a
ce

y,
 1

4
2

4
5

 M
ic

h
ig

a
n
 A

v
e

2
. 

“
C

o
m

m
u

n
ca

ti
o

n
 B

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
”
 

  
  

 D
e
tr

o
it

 D
e
si

g
n
 C

e
n
te

r,
 M

ic
h
ig

a
n
 A

v
e
 &

 S
c
h
a

e
fe

r

3
. 

“
C

a
le

n
d

ra
”

  
  

 D
e
tr

o
it

 D
e
si

g
n
 C

e
n
te

r,
 M

a
p

le
 &

 O
sb

o
rn

4
. 

“
G

ra
v

it
y

”

  
  

 D
e
tr

o
it

 D
e
si

g
n
 C

e
n
te

r,
 M

ic
h
ig

a
n
 A

v
e
 &

 M
a

p
le

5
. 

“
T

h
e

 T
o

w
e

r”

  
  

 D
e
tr

o
it

 D
e
si

g
n
 C

e
n
te

r,
 S

ta
rb

u
ck

s 
P

la
z
a

6
. 

“
T

h
re

e
 S

p
ir

ts
”

  
  

 D
e
tr

o
it

 D
e
si

g
n
 C

e
n
te

r,
 M

u
ir

h
e
a

d
 P

la
z
a

7
. 

“
L
if

e
 T

re
e

 C
it

y
”

  
  

 D
e
tr

o
it

 D
e
si

g
n
 C

e
n
te

r,
 M

ic
h
ig

a
n
 A

v
e
 &

 H
o
w

a
rd

I 
S
P

Y
 D

E
A

R
B

O
R

N
’S

 A
R

T
 

IN
 P

U
B

L
IC

 P
L
A

C
E
S

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h
e

 c
it
y
. 

F
in

d
 

th
e

m
 a

ll
 i

n
 a

 d
a

y
 

o
r 

o
ve

r 
ti
m

e
 w

h
il
e

 

e
x

p
lo

ri
n
g

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

D
e

a
rb

o
rn

. 

S
o

m
e

 a
rt

w
o

rk
 i

s 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t;

 o
th

e
r 

p
ie

ce
s 

a
re

 o
n
 l

o
a

n
 

b
u
t 

a
va

il
a

b
le

 f
o

r 

p
u
rc

h
a

se
. 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 t

h
e

 

D
C

F
 a

t 
3

1
3

.9
4

3
.5

4
7

8
P

h
o

to
 C

re
d

it
:

Te
re

sa
 L

o
u
si

a
s,

 L
e
sl

ie
 H

a
rr

ic
k

01
5



1
. 

“
T
ra

n
s
it

io
n

s
”
 

P
O

P,
 J

o
h
n
 D

. 
D

in
g

e
ll
 T

ra
n
si

t 
C

e
n
te

r

2
. 

“
R

o
u

g
e

 R
iv

e
r 

R
e

b
ir

th
”
 

P
O

P,
 S

c
h
a

e
fe

r 
&

 O
sb

o
rn

3
. 

“
W

e
 A

re
 O

n
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

”

P
O

P,
 P

o
ck

e
t 

P
a

rk
 M

ic
h
ig

a
n
 A

v
e

4
. 

“
W

e
 A

re
 O

n
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

”

P
O

P,
 C

it
y
 H

a
ll
 P

a
rk

 M
ic

h
ig

a
n
 A

v
e

5
. 

“
S

e
lf

 S
e

ri
e

s
 -

 T
w

in
s
”

D
e

tr
o

it
 D

e
si

g
n
 C

e
n
te

r,
 F

C
P
A

6
. 

“
T
w

o
 S

id
e

s
 o

f 
M

ic
h

ig
a

n
”

D
e
tr

o
it

 D
e
si

g
n
 C

e
n
te

r,
 F

C
P
A

7
. 

“
G

a
z
e

”

Ja
m

e
s 

O
le

so
n
, 

S
W

 S
id

e
 F

C
P
A

1 3
42

5
6

7

9F
O

R
D

 (
F
C

P
A

)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 &
 

P
E
R

F
O

R
M

IN
G

 

A
R

T
S
 C

E
N

T
E
R

“
P

O
P

”
 

P
O

C
K

E
T
S
 O

F
 

P
E
R

C
E
P

T
IO

N
 

8

8
. 

“A
rc

h
 &

 B
e

n
ch

”

R
u
ss

e
ll
 T

h
a

y
e
r,
 

W
 E

n
tr

a
n
ce

 F
C

P
A

 

9
. 

“
J
o

y
 o

f 
M

u
s
ic

”

G
e
o

rg
e
 L

u
n
d

e
e
n
,

W
 E

n
tr

a
n
ce

 F
C

P
A

o
rg

a
n
iz

a
ti

o
n
. 

G
if

ts
 t

o
w

a
rd

s 

p
u
rc

h
a

se
 o

f
 a

rt
 w

o
rk

 f
o

r 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

p
u
b

li
c 

in
st

a
ll
a

ti
o

n
 

a
re

 t
a

x
 d

e
d

u
ct

ib
le

.

Le
a

rn
 m

o
re

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 D

C
F
 a

t 

D
e

a
rb

o
rn

C
o

m
m

u
n
it

y
F
u

n
d

.o
rg

A
n
 a

p
p

re
n
ti

ce
 s

ty
le

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
 t

o
 c

u
lt

iv
a

te
 

st
u
d

e
n
ts

’ 
cr

e
a

ti
v
it

y
 w

h
il
e
 

e
n
co

u
ra

g
in

g
 m

u
lt

ic
u
lt

u
ra

l 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

 a
n
d

 

co
m

m
u
n
it

y
 i

n
v
e
st

m
e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 c

re
a

ti
o

n
 

o
f
 p

u
b

li
c 

a
rt

.

D
E
A

R
B

O
R

N
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 F
U

N
D

01
6



East Dearborn DDA & West Dearborn DDA (DDDAs) 
Dearborn Administrative Center 16901 Michigan Avenue, Dearborn, MI 48126 

 
POLICY FOR PROVIDING SPONSORSHIPS 
(DDDAs as Sponsors) 

 
 

1 

I. PURPOSE 
1. Set out the criteria and decision making process for the East and West Dearborn Downtown 

Development Authorities (DDDAs) in their roles as sponsors of other organizations, events, or projects. 
2. Ensure fair, transparent sponsorship practices.  

 
II. DEFINITIONS 

1. Sponsor: An organization or individual, in this case, the DDDAs, looking for marketing and community 
relations opportunities that support their brand, message, and/or goals. 

2. Sponsorship: A business relationship between the DDDAs (as the sponsor) and the sponsor-seeker 
where the sponsor provides money, products, or services to the sponsor-seeker in exchange for 
publicity and recognition. 

3. Sponsor-Seeker: An organization or individual seeking money, products, or services from the DDDAs to 
alleviate costs, diversify revenue, and, possibly, exhibit alignment with the DDDAs.  

 
III. OVERVIEW 
As sponsors, the DDDAs may support the events, projects, programs and operations of other organizations 
within the terms outlined below. Using sponsorships as a marketing tool, the DDDAs seek to promote their 
mission and brand, that is, Dearborn’s downtown business districts and the overall image of Downtown 
Dearborn. Evaluation of sponsorship opportunities will be guided by the Downtown Dearborn vision and 
transformational strategies. 
 
IV. CRITERIA FOR EVALUATING SPONSORSHIP REQUESTS 

1. Only reputable individuals and organizations whose image, product, or services do not conflict with the 
DDDAs’ missions or values may be considered.  

2. The DDDAs’ long term reputation and credibility always take precedence.  
3. There is no obligation to accept any particular request. 
4. Each sponsorship request will be considered on its merits. Discernment will characterize the decision 

making process. 
5. Each sponsorship request will consider the authority and powers of the DDDAs and Public Act 57, in 

particular whether the sponsorship will benefit only retail and general marketing of the downtown 
district. 

6. These questions will be asked of each sponsorship opportunity:  
a. Does it match, complement, or conflict with the DDDAs’ values? 
b. Does it support one or more of the DDDAs' transformational strategies? 
c. Would this association be a good fit with the image of the Downtown Dearborn project? 
d. Does it appeal to at least one of the DDDAs’ target markets? 
e. Does it support the vision of the Downtown Dearborn project? 

017



East Dearborn DDA & West Dearborn DDA (DDDAs) 
Dearborn Administrative Center 16901 Michigan Avenue, Dearborn, MI 48126 

 
POLICY FOR PROVIDING SPONSORSHIPS 
(DDDAs as Sponsors) 

 
 

2 

7. Ethical filters that help determine good-fit sponsor-seekers: 
a. Disclosure and accountability.  

8. The DDDAs will not continue sponsorship discussions with any organization once that organization, its 
parent or subsidiaries is found to be engaged in criminal activity. 

9. To ensure that the DDDAs are perceived as welcoming and inclusive to everyone, the DDDAs shall not 
enter into sponsorship discussions with organizations that have a primary focus on party politics and/or 
religious activities. 
 

V. VETTING 
1. Using the criteria listed in section IV, the DDDAs’ representatives will vet potential organizations that are 

seeking sponsorship (sponsor-seeker) support. 
2. Vetting may include general research, as well as interviewing a sponsor-seeker’s representatives. 

a. Sponsor-seekers who refuse/fail to respond to inquiries may be rejected. 
b. Questions may vary between sponsor-seekers. 
c. If a sponsor-seeker is later found to have misled the DDDAs, the DDDAs have the right to cancel 

the sponsorship agreement. 
d. Market impact and previous success of programming 

3. Sponsorships shall be reviewed with more rigor and detail where the risks to the DDDAs’ credibility and 
integrity are higher, for instance with national or multi-year agreements. In such circumstances, 
information obtained solely from the sponsor-seeker may not be sufficient. 

 
VI. RECOGNITION OF THE DDDAs 

1. The DDDAs and their joint Downtown Dearborn initiative shall be represented by name and logo as 
Downtown Dearborn in all promotions, as well as respective DDDA district logos if different. 

 
VII. SPONSORSHIP MANAGEMENT 

1. Sponsorships will be documented with a sponsorship contract between the DDDAs and the sponsor-
seeker. 

2. Sponsor-seekers and sponsorships will be tracked in a database for reporting purposes. 
 
VIII. REVIEW AND EVALUATION 
This policy shall be reviewed by the promotions committee every two years. Recommended changes shall be 
presented to the board for approval. Revisions will be completed by the DDDA staff. 
 
APPROVED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: XX/XX/20XX 
 
 

Commented [1]: Stormy thought this criteria might 
ruffle feathers with the many religious groups and 
houses of worship throughout the city. 

Commented [2]: _Marked as resolved_ 

Commented [3]: _Re-opened_ 

Commented [4]: Ask legal to help reword number 
eight. 

018



East Dearborn DDA & West Dearborn DDA (DDDAs) 
Dearborn Administrative Center 16901 Michigan Avenue, Dearborn, MI 48126 

 
POLICY FOR PROVIDING SPONSORSHIPS 
(DDDAs as Sponsors) 

 
 

3 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 _________________________________ 
CORPORATION COUNSEL 
 

019



East Dearborn DDA & West Dearborn DDA (DDDAs) 
Dearborn Administrative Center 16901 Michigan Avenue, Dearborn, MI 48126 

 
POLICY FOR SEEKING SPONSORSHIPS 
(DDDAs as Sponsor-Seekers) 

 
 

1 

I. PURPOSE 
1. Set out the criteria and decision making process for the East and West Dearborn Downtown 

Development Authorities (DDDAs) in their roles as sponsor-seekers. 
2. Diversify and generate revenue for the DDDAs’ operations, programs, events, special projects, and 

campaigns. 
3. Ensure fair, transparent sponsorship practices.  

 
II. DEFINITIONS 

1. Sponsor: An organization or individual looking for marketing and community relations opportunities that 
support their brand, message, and/or goals. These organizations include, but are not limited to, 
corporations, health care systems, small businesses, schools, higher education institutions, and 
government. 

2. Sponsorship: A business relationship between a sponsor and the sponsor-seeker where the sponsor 
provides money, products, or services to the sponsor-seeker in exchange for publicity and recognition. 

3. Sponsor-Seeker: Sponsor-seekers, in this case, the DDDAs, utilize sponsorships to alleviate costs, 
diversify revenue, and, possibly, exhibit alignment with a particular brand or organization.  

 
III. CRITERIA FOR EVALUATING POTENTIAL SPONSORS 

1. Only reputable individuals and organizations whose image, product, or services do not conflict with the 
DDDAs’ missions or values may be considered.  

2. The DDDAs’ long term reputation and credibility always take precedence.  
3. There is no obligation to accept any particular request. 
4. Each sponsorship request will be considered on its merits. Discernment will characterize the decision 

making process. 
5. These questions will be asked of each sponsorship opportunity:  

a. Does it match, complement, or conflict with the DDDAs’ values? 
b. Does it support one or more of the DDDAs' transformational strategies? 
c. Would this association be a good fit with the image of the Downtown Dearborn project? 
d. Does it appeal to at least one of the DDDAs’ target markets? 
e. Does it support the vision of the Downtown Dearborn project? 

6. Ethical filters that help determine good-fit sponsor-seekers: 
a. Disclosure and accountability.  

7. The DDDAs will not continue sponsorship discussions with any organization once that organization, its 
parent or subsidiaries is found to be engaged in criminal activity. 

020



East Dearborn DDA & West Dearborn DDA (DDDAs) 
Dearborn Administrative Center 16901 Michigan Avenue, Dearborn, MI 48126 

 
POLICY FOR SEEKING SPONSORSHIPS 
(DDDAs as Sponsor-Seekers) 

 
 

2 

8. To ensure that the DDDAs are perceived as welcoming and inclusive to everyone, the DDDAs shall not 
enter into sponsorship discussions with organizations that have a primary focus on party politics and/or 
religious activities. 

 
IV. SPONSOR SELECTION & VETTING 

1. Sponsor recommendations will be accepted from the boards of directors and other stakeholders as well 
as by the DDDAs’ staff. 

2. DDDA representatives will conduct an initial vetting of recommended sponsors for a good-fit with the 
criteria listed in section IV. 

3. This process may include general research as well as interviewing a sponsor’s representatives. 
a. Sponsors who refuse/fail to respond to inquiries may be rejected. 
b. Questions asked may vary between sponsors. 
c. If a sponsor is later found to have misled the DDDAs, the DDDAs have the right to cancel the 

sponsorship agreement. 
4. Sponsorships shall be reviewed with more rigor and detail where the risks to the DDDAs’ credibility and 

integrity are higher, for instance with national or multi-year agreements. In such circumstances, 
information obtained solely from the sponsor may not be sufficient. 

 
V. SPONSORSHIP TYPES  

1. Limited Sponsorships are fully-compliant with the sponsorship policy, pertain to particular events or 
single programs only. 

a. Research and recruitment of Limited Sponsorships shall be vetted by the committee overseeing 
the project, event or program. Final authorization of limited sponsorships is at the sole 
discretion of the DDDAs’ executive director. 

2. Downtown Champion Sponsorships  pertain to organizational projects, programs or campaigns that 
support either more than one program, project, event of initiative of the DDDAs; or are an exclusive 
(one-time) project or program;  and/or have a duration that exceeds more than six months; and/or are 
only partially compliant with the criteria established in item IV. 

a. Selection and authorization of Downtown Champion Sponsorships will first be vetted by the 
committee overseeing the project, event or program.  Authorization of Downtown Champion 
sponsorships under $25,000 is at the sole discretion of the DDDAs’ executive director. The 
committee will present its recommendation to the DDDAs’ joint board for approval.  
Authorization of Downtown Champion Sponsorships over $25,000 shall be approved by the 
Boards jointly.  
 

VI. SPONSORSHIP MANAGEMENT 

021



East Dearborn DDA & West Dearborn DDA (DDDAs) 
Dearborn Administrative Center 16901 Michigan Avenue, Dearborn, MI 48126 

 
POLICY FOR SEEKING SPONSORSHIPS 
(DDDAs as Sponsor-Seekers) 

 
 

3 

1. The DDDAs will draft and administer a sponsorship contract with the sponsor. 
2. Sponsors and sponsorships will be tracked in a database for reporting purposes. 

 
VII. REPRESENTATION OF THE DDDAs 

1. The DDDAs and their joint Downtown Dearborn initiative shall be represented by name and logo as 
Downtown Dearborn in all promotions, as well as respective DDDA district logos if different. 
 

VIII. REVIEW AND EVALUATION 
This policy shall be reviewed by the promotions committee every two years. Recommended changes shall be 
presented to the board for approval. Revisions will be completed by the DDDA staff/executive management 
team. 
 
 
APPROVED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: XX/XX/20XX 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 _________________________________ 
CORPORATION COUNSEL 
 
 

022



Ladies Night Summary 2019 
 
Date: Wednesday, May 1st 
Location: East & West Downtown  
Time: 5pm to 9pm 
 
The Event: 
Our goal is to host a city-wide promotion targeting women ages 25 - 60 for an evening of 
pampering, socializing, shopping, along with wining and dining. This event will encourage 
patronage  to participating businesses/shops; focusing on retail, service and restaurant 
establishments.  This is a free event to the pubic. 
 
Participating Businesses: 
We will plan on reaching out to businesses in out and of the downtown district by sending out a 
participation application. We are planning on charging a small fee to both in and out of district 
businesses. These fees will help to cover event expenses. 
 
Partnering with Bailey’s Bar & Grill and their Vendors: 
We have partnered with Baileys who have been hosting a Ladies Night for a couple years now. 
They will host up to 16 vendors in their establishment. They will cross promote with us.  
 
Partnering with J.B. Bamboozles and their Vendors: 
We have partnered with J.B. Bamboozles and are planning on inviting several vendors who will 
set up similar to Baileys.  They will cross promote with us.  
 
Marketing & Promotions: 
We intend to partner with iHeartMedia to promote the event in order to draw an even larger 
crowd than 2018. We estimate the event had close to 750 participants by the number of Lei’s 
distributed at the registration points. Our goal is to use $5000 for radio marketing in addition to 
social media boosting and printed materials. 
 
Sponsors: 
Our goal is to reach out to several businesses to sponsor the event.  
 
Potential Sponsors: 
Hampton Inn 
Dearborn Inn 
Steven Bernard Jewelers 
Merchant of Vino 
OM Spa 
Salon 260 
Some other female oriented businesses 
 
 

023



Shuttle Service: 
We would like to reach out to inquire with the city to utilize their shuttle busses. We will have 3 
Event Registration, drop off and pick up locations, including Steven Bernard Jewelers,  Baileys 
and J.B Bamboozles. We are still working on the fourth, which will be in the East. 
 
 
 
 

024



D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 D

e
a

rb
o

rn
’s

 L
a

d
ie

s 
N

ig
h

t

S
o

u
rc

e
:

1

W
h

o
: 

W
e

st
 D

e
a

rb
o

rn
 D

D
A

, 
iH

e
a

rt
M

e
d

ia
 a

n
d

 S
h

a
n

n
o

n
 M

u
rp

h
y

W
h

a
t:

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 D

e
a

rb
o

rn
 L

a
d

ie
s 

N
ig

h
t 

O
u

t!
 

W
h

e
re

: 
D

o
w

n
to

w
n

 D
e

a
rb

o
rn

 

W
h

e
n

: 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

9

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 O

b
je

c
ti

v
e

:

P
e

rs
u

a
d

e
 w

o
m

e
n

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 D
e

a
rb

o
rn

 t
o

 g
e

t 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
fo

r 
a

 g
re

a
t 

n
ig

h
t 

o
f 

sh
o

p
p

in
g

, 
w

o
rk

sh
o

p
s,

 d
in

in
g

, 
d

ri
n

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
! 

G
iv

e
 t

h
e

m
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 c

o
m

e
 s

h
a

re
 a

 c
o

c
k
ta

il 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 f

a
v

o
ri
te

 m
o

rn
in

g
 s

h
o

w
 h

o
st

e
ss

 –
S
h

a
n

n
o

n
! 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
: 

C
o

n
n

e
c

t 
w

it
h

 w
o

m
e

n
 o

f 
a

ll 
a

g
e

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 h

e
lp

 o
f 

D
e

tr
o

it
’s

 S
w

e
e

th
e

a
rt

 –
S
h

a
n

n
o

n
 M

u
rp

h
y
! 

R
e

a
c

h
 t

h
e

m
 i
n

 a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 w
a

y
s 

th
e

y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 M
o

jo
 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

o
rn

in
g

 –
o

n
-a

ir
, 

o
n

 s
o

c
ia

l 
m

e
d

ia
 a

n
d

 o
n

lin
e

. 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
o

ls
: 

•
O

n
-a

ir
 m

e
ss

a
g

e
s 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 S

h
a

n
n

o
n

’s
 a

p
p

e
a

ra
n

c
e

 a
t 

[i
n

se
rt

 d
e

st
in

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

c
h

o
ic

e
] 

w
h

e
re

 w
o

m
e

n
 c

a
n

 j
o

in
 

S
h

a
n

n
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
 p

re
-l

a
d

ie
s 

n
ig

h
t 

c
o

c
k
ta

il.

•
B

o
o

st
e

d
 F

a
c

e
b

o
o

k
 V

id
e

o
 w

it
h

 S
h

a
n

n
o

n
 –

in
v

it
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 c

o
m

e
 j
o

in
 h

e
r 

fo
r 

L
a

d
ie

s 
N

ig
h

t 
in

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 D

e
a

rb
o

rn
 –

ta
rg

e
ti
n

g
 w

o
m

e
n

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 p
re

-s
e

le
c

te
d

 z
ip

 c
o

d
e

s.
 

•
R

O
S
 D

is
p

la
y
 a

t 
c

h
a

n
n

e
l9

5
5

.c
o

m
 

•
O

n
-a

ir
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 L

a
d

ie
s 

N
ig

h
t 

in
 t

a
n

d
e

m
 w

it
h

 S
h

a
n

n
o

n
’s

 a
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c

e
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
se

 r
e

a
c

h
 a

n
d

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

. 

02
5



D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 D

e
a

rb
o

rn
’s

 L
a

d
ie

s 
N

ig
h

t

S
o

u
rc

e
:

2

D
e

li
v

e
ra

b
le

s:

O
n

-a
ir

:

•
1

2
x
 :

1
5

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
ls

 d
u

ri
n

g
 M

o
jo

 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

o
rn

in
g

 (
8

x
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
) 

le
a

d
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
v

e
n

t

•
1

0
x
 :

1
5

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
m

e
ss

a
g

e
s 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 S

h
a

n
n

o
n

’s
 a

p
p

e
a

ra
n

c
e

 

•
1

2
x
 :

1
5

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 m
e

ss
a

g
e

s 
o

n
 t

h
e

 M
o

jo
 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

o
rn

in
g

 L
iv

e
 S

tr
e

a
m

 o
n

 i
H

e
a

rt
R

a
d

io

•
1

x
 c

a
ll 

in
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 

S
o

c
ia

l 
M

e
d

ia
: 

•
B

o
o

st
e

d
 F

a
c

e
b

o
o

k
 V

id
e

o
 f

e
a

tu
ri
n

g
 S

h
a

n
n

o
n

 –
ta

rg
e

ti
n

g
 w

o
m

e
n

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 h
o

t 
zi

p
 c

o
d

e
s 

fo
r 

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 D

e
a

rb
o

rn
 

(F
e

rn
d

a
le

, 
W

y
a

n
d

o
tt

e
, 

Ta
y
lo

r,
 D

o
w

n
to

w
n

 D
e

tr
o

it
, 

e
tc

.)

O
n

-d
e

v
ic

e
/
O

n
li
n

e
:

•
5

0
,0

0
0

 d
ig

it
a

l 
d

is
p

la
y
 im

p
re

ss
io

n
s 

a
t 

C
h

a
n

n
e

l9
5

5
.c

o
m

O
n

-s
it

e
: 

•
S
h

a
n

n
o

n
 o

n
si

te
 f

o
r 

2
 h

o
u

rs
 a

t 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

c
h

o
ic

e
 

N
e

t 
In

v
e

st
m

e
n

t:
 $

5
,0

0
0

(i
n

c
lu

si
v

e
 o

f 
a

ll
 t

a
le

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 
fe

e
s)

02
6



02
7



EV
EN

T
W

ES
T

EA
ST

C
O

M
BI

N
ED

EX
PE

N
SE

 L
EV

EL
AT

TE
N

D
EN

C
E

IN
C

O
M

E 
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
20

18
 A

C
TU

AL
 IN

C
O

M
E

R
AN

K
PR

IO
R

IT
Y

R
es

ta
ur

an
t W

ee
k 

(D
R

W
)

x
$3

4,
00

0.
00

N
/A

$3
0,

00
0.

00
$1

9,
50

0.
00

1
1

Sh
op

 S
m

al
l

x
$1

4,
50

0.
00

N
/A

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

2
2

La
di

es
 N

ig
ht

x
$6

,8
55

.0
0

75
0

$2
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,7
40

.0
0

2
3

Ad
op

t a
 T

re
e 

W
el

l
x

$6
00

.0
0

N
/A

$5
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
4

3

Fr
id

ay
 N

ite
s 

M
us

ic
 &

 F
oo

di
e 

R
al

lie
s

x
$4

2,
52

0.
00

60
00

-7
00

0
$1

8,
00

0.
00

$6
,1

75
.0

0
1

1
Fa

rm
er

s 
& 

Ar
tis

an
s 

M
ar

ke
t (

D
FM

)
x

$2
5,

54
0.

00
50

00
$2

5,
00

0.
00

es
t. 

12
50

0
1

1
W

in
te

rfe
st

 M
ar

ke
t W

es
t

x
$2

0,
81

5.
00

12
00

$7
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,5
20

.0
0

3
3

Ki
ds

 D
ay

 a
t t

he
 M

ar
ke

t
x

$1
6,

65
5.

00
30

00
$1

5,
00

0.
00

$1
0,

00
0.

00
1

1
Fa

rm
 to

 T
ab

le
x

$1
2,

00
0.

00
N

/A
$1

5,
50

0.
00

$0
.0

0
4

Tu
ne

s 
at

 N
oo

n
x

$6
,6

20
.0

0
N

/A
$4

,5
00

.0
0

$5
,0

00
.0

0
2

3
M

ov
ie

s 
at

 W
ag

er
 P

ar
k

x
$2

,3
50

.0
0

60
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

4
4

Fa
ll 

Pe
re

nn
ia

l E
xc

ha
ng

e
x

$2
,0

60
.0

0
50

$5
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
5

4
Tr

ic
k 

or
 T

re
at

/ D
og

go
ne

 D
ea

rb
or

n
x

$1
,0

00
.0

0
30

00
$5

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

2
2

M
ar

tia
n 

M
ar

at
ho

n
x

$5
00

.0
0

N
/A

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

4
4

Ic
e 

C
re

am
 S

oc
ia

l
x

35
0

$2
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
4

4

EV
EN

T
W

ES
T

EA
ST

C
O

M
BI

N
ED

EX
PE

N
SE

 L
EV

EL
AT

TE
N

D
EN

C
E

IN
C

O
M

E 
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
20

18
 A

C
TU

AL
 IN

C
O

M
E

R
AN

K
PR

IO
R

IT
Y

Ja
zz

 o
n 

th
e 

Av
e

x
$5

7,
46

0.
00

12
00

0
$1

0,
50

0.
00

$5
,0

00
.0

0
1

1
W

in
te

rfe
st

 M
ar

ke
t E

as
t

x
$1

5,
00

0.
00

50
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,0
50

.0
0

3
3

M
us

ic
 in

 th
e 

Pa
rk

x
$6

,6
20

.0
0

N
/A

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

4
4

M
ov

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
Pa

rk
x

$2
,3

50
.0

0
30

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
5

4
Sp

rin
g 

Pe
re

nn
ia

l E
xc

ha
ng

e
x

$2
,0

60
.0

0
50

$5
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
5

4
Pu

m
pk

in
 C

ar
vi

ng
x

$4
00

.0
0

12
5

$5
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
4

4
Tr

ic
k 

or
 T

re
at

/ S
po

ok
y 

St
or

ey
x

$4
00

.0
0

10
00

$5
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
2

2
ED

D
D

A 
O

pe
n 

H
ou

se
x

$1
,5

00
.0

0
10

0
$5

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

02
8



EA
S

T 
 D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 
P

LA
N

TE
R

 R
EM

O
V

A
L

02
9



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

2
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

A
.  

TW
O

 L
A

R
G

E
 P

L
A

N
TE

R
S

 (
10

’X
4

’)

B
.  

TW
O

 S
M

A
L

L
 P

L
A

N
TE

R
S

 (
4

’X
4

’)

C
.  

TR
E

E
S

 I
N

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 P
L

A
N

TE
R

03
0



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

3
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 L
A

R
G

E 
P

LA
N

TE
R

TW
O

 L
A

R
G

E
 P

L
A

N
TE

R
S

 (
10

’X
4

’)
EX

IS
TI

N
G

P
R

O
P

O
S

ED

O
P

TI
O

N
 2

: 
R

ED
U

C
E 

TH
E 

W
ID

TH
 O

F 
EA

C
H

 P
LA

N
TE

R
 T

O
 T

H
E 

4
’X

4
’ 

S
M

A
LL

 P
LA

N
TE

R
 S

IZ
E

(K
EE

P
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 3

 S
ID

ES
) 

A
N

D
 A

D
D

 T
W

O
 T

R
EE

S
 I

N
 G

R
A

TE
S

. P
R

O
V

ID
E 

O
U

TD
O

O
R

 D
IN

IN
G

 B
ET

W
EE

N
 E

A
C

H
 P

LA
N

TE
R

.

O
P

TI
O

N
 1

: 
R

EM
O

V
E 

TH
E 

IN
TE

R
IO

R
 P

LA
N

TE
R

 O
N

LY
 (

C
O

M
P

LE
TE

LY
) 

A
N

D
 R

EP
LA

C
E 

W
IT

H
 T

R
EE

S
 I

N
 G

R
A

TE
S

. P
R

O
V

ID
E 

O
U

TD
O

O
R

 D
IN

IN
G

 IN
 T

H
E 

A
R

EA
 W

H
ER

E 
TH

E 
P

LA
N

TE
R

 I
S

 R
EM

O
V

ED
.

OPTION 2 
LIMIT

OPTION 2 
LIMIT

03
1



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

4
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 L
A

R
G

E 
P

LA
N

TE
R

 R
EM

O
V

A
L 

O
P

TI
O

N
 1

EX
IS

TI
N

G

P
R

O
P

O
S

ED

L
IM

IT
S

 O
F

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L

R
EM

O
V

E 
TH

E 
IN

TE
R

IO
R

 P
LA

N
TE

R
 O

N
LY

 (
C

O
M

P
LE

TE
LY

) 
A

N
D

 R
EP

LA
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
R

EE
S

 I
N

 G
R

A
TE

S
. P

R
O

V
ID

E 
O

U
TD

O
O

R
 D

IN
IN

G
 IN

 T
H

E 
A

R
EA

 W
H

ER
E 

TH
E 

P
LA

N
TE

R
 I

S
 R

EM
O

V
ED

.

03
2



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

5
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 L
A

R
G

E 
P

LA
N

TE
R

 R
EM

O
V

A
L 

O
P

TI
O

N
 2

EX
IS

TI
N

G

P
R

O
P

O
S

ED

R
ED

U
C

E 
TH

E 
W

ID
TH

 O
F 

EA
C

H
 P

LA
N

TE
R

 T
O

 T
H

E 
4

’X
4

’ 
S

M
A

LL
 P

LA
N

TE
R

 S
IZ

E
(K

EE
P

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 3
 S

ID
ES

) 
A

N
D

 A
D

D
 T

W
O

 T
R

EE
S

 I
N

 G
R

A
TE

S
. P

R
O

V
ID

E 
O

U
TD

O
O

R
 D

IN
IN

G
 B

ET
W

EE
N

 E
A

C
H

 P
LA

N
TE

R
.

L
IM

IT
S

 O
F

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L

03
3



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

6
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 S
M

A
LL

 P
LA

N
TE

R
TW

O
 S

M
A

L
L

 P
L

A
N

TE
R

S
 (

4
’X

4
’)

EX
IS

TI
N

G

P
R

O
P

O
S

ED

O
P

TI
O

N
 1

: 
K

EE
P

 B
O

TH
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 S

M
A

LL
 P

LA
N

TE
R

S
 B

U
T 

R
EP

LA
C

E 
TH

E 
M

IS
S

IN
G

 T
R

EE
.

O
P

TI
O

N
 2

: 
R

EM
O

V
E 

TH
E 

IN
TE

R
IO

R
 P

LA
N

TE
R

 O
N

LY
 (

C
O

M
P

LE
TE

LY
) 

A
N

D
 R

EP
LA

C
E 

W
IT

H
 A

 T
R

EE
 I

N
 A

 G
R

A
TE

. P
R

O
V

ID
E 

O
U

TD
O

O
R

 D
IN

IN
G

 IN
 T

H
E 

A
R

EA
 W

H
ER

E
TH

E 
P

LA
N

TE
R

 I
S

 R
EM

O
V

ED
.

03
4



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

7
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 S
M

A
LL

 P
LA

N
TE

R
 O

P
TI

O
N

 1

R
E

P
L

A
N

T 
S

M
A

L
L

 P
L

A
N

TE
R

S
 (

4
’X

4
’)

EX
IS

TI
N

G

P
R

O
P

O
S

ED

O
P

TI
O

N
 1

: 
K

EE
P

 B
O

TH
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 S

M
A

LL
 P

LA
N

TE
R

S
 B

U
T 

R
EP

LA
C

E 
TH

E 
M

IS
S

IN
G

 T
R

EE
.

03
5



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

8
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 S
M

A
LL

 P
LA

N
TE

R
 O

P
TI

O
N

 2

R
E

M
O

V
E

 S
M

A
L

L
 P

L
A

N
TE

R
 (

4
’X

4
’)

EX
IS

TI
N

G

P
R

O
P

O
S

ED

R
EM

O
V

E 
TH

E 
IN

TE
R

IO
R

 P
LA

N
TE

R
 O

N
LY

 (
C

O
M

P
LE

TE
LY

) 
A

N
D

 R
EP

LA
C

E 
W

IT
H

 A
 T

R
EE

 I
N

 A
 G

R
A

TE
. P

R
O

V
ID

E 
O

U
TD

O
O

R
 D

IN
IN

G
 IN

 T
H

E 
A

R
EA

 W
H

ER
E

TH
E 

P
LA

N
TE

R
 I

S
 R

EM
O

V
ED

.

03
6



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

9
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 F
LU

S
H

 T
R

EE
 P

IT
S

EX
IS

TI
N

G

P
R

O
P

O
S

ED

O
P

TI
O

N
 1

: 
K

EE
P

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 A
S

 I
S

 B
U

T 
R

EP
LA

C
E 

A
N

Y
 M

IS
S

IN
G

 T
R

EE
S

.

TR
E

E
S

 I
N

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 P
L

A
N

TE
R

O
P

TI
O

N
 2

: 
P

R
O

V
ID

E 
TR

EE
 G

R
A

TE
S

 A
R

O
U

N
D

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 T
R

EE
 P

IT
S

 A
N

D
 R

EP
LA

C
E 

A
N

Y
 

M
IS

S
IN

G
 T

R
EE

S
.

03
7



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

10
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 F
LU

S
H

 T
R

EE
 P

IT
 O

P
TI

O
N

 1

EX
IS

TI
N

G

P
R

O
P

O
S

ED

K
EE

P
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 A

S
 I

S
 B

U
T 

R
EP

LA
C

E 
A

N
Y

 M
IS

S
IN

G
 T

R
EE

S
.

TR
E

E
S

 I
N

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 P
L

A
N

TE
R

03
8



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

11
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 F
LU

S
H

 T
R

EE
 P

IT
 O

P
TI

O
N

 2

P
R

O
V

ID
E 

TR
EE

 G
R

A
TE

S
 A

R
O

U
N

D
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 T

R
EE

 P
IT

S
 

A
N

D
 R

EP
LA

C
E 

A
N

Y
 M

IS
S

IN
G

 T
R

EE
S

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

ED

TR
E

E
S

 I
N

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 P
L

A
N

TE
R

EX
IS

TI
N

G

03
9



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

12
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 O
V

ER
A

LL
 P

LA
N

TE
R

 R
EM

O
V

A
L 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

S

04
0



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

13
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 O
V

ER
A

LL
 P

LA
N

TE
R

 R
EM

O
V

A
L 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

S

04
1



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

14
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 O
V

ER
A

LL
 P

LA
N

TE
R

 R
EM

O
V

A
L 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

S

04
2



EA
S

T 
&

 W
ES

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

E
a
s
t 

&
 W

e
s
t 

D
e
a
rb

o
rn

15
s
m

it
h

g
ro

u
p

.c
o
m

EA
S

T 
D

EA
R

B
O

R
N

 D
IN

IN
G

 S
C

R
EE

N
P

R
IV

A
TE

LY
 O

W
N

ED
: 

LI
M

IT
ED

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

O
V

ER
 F

IN
IS

H
 A

N
D

 M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E.
C

O
S

T 
B

Y
 E

A
C

H
 P

R
O

P
ER

TY
 O

W
N

ER
.

TE
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 I
N

S
TA

LL
 S

U
M

M
ER

 M
O

N
TH

S
 O

N
LY

.

C
IT

Y
 O

W
N

ED
: 

FI
N

IS
H

 /
 S

TY
LE

 D
ET

ER
M

IN
ED

 B
Y

 C
IT

Y
.

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
C

O
M

P
LE

TE
D

 B
Y

 C
IT

Y
.

C
O

S
T 

B
Y

 C
IT

Y
 I

N
S

TE
A

D
 O

F 
P

R
O

P
ER

TY
 O

W
N

ER
.

C
O

U
LD

 B
E 

A
 M

O
R

E 
P

ER
M

A
N

EN
T 

FI
X

TU
R

E.
 

04
3



04
4



045



1

L
e

g
a

l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 o

f 
iH

e
a

rt
M

e
d

ia

D
e

a
rb

o
rn

 

R
e

st
a

u
ra

n
t 

W
e

e
k

 

2
0

1
9

C
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 R

e
c

a
p

2
/

2
6

/
2

0
1

9

04
6



2

C
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 S

u
m

m
a

ry

D
e

a
rb

o
rn

 R
e

st
a

u
ra

n
t 

W
e

e
k

C
h

a
n

n
e

l 
9

5
5

, 
1

0
0

.3
 W

N
IC

, 
A

L
T 

1
0

6
.7

, 
M

ix
 9

2
.3

 

W
M

X
D

, 
9

7
.9

 W
J
L
B

, 
1

1
3

0
 W

D
F
N

2
/4

/2
0

1
9

 –
2

/1
7

/2
0

1
9

•
3

6
6

x
 :

1
5

 &
 :

3
0

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
ls

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

•
3

6
6

x
 :

1
5

 &
 :

3
0

 s
e

c
 i
H

e
a

rt
R

a
d

io
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

ls
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

•
1

2
x
 :

3
0

 S
p

ik
e

 E
n

d
o

rs
e

m
e

n
ts

 

•
9

x
: 

6
0

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 s
p

o
n

so
r 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
ls

•
6

 s
ta

ti
o

n
s

•
2

 w
e

e
k
s 

o
f 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n

•
2

 

1
 w

e
e

k
s 

o
f 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
2

 w

1
 a

m
a

zi
n

g
 w

e
e

k
 o

f 
d

e
lic

io
u

s 
e

a
ts

!

D
e

liv
e

re
d

 I
m

p
re

ss
io

n
s:

 

•
4
,2

5
7
,0

0
0
 t

o
ta

l 
b

ro
a

d
c

a
st

 i
m

p
re

ss
io

n
s 

•
4
6
6
,4

4
0
 s

tr
e

a
m

in
g

 i
m

p
re

ss
io

n
s

•
2
3
7
,5

0
0

d
ig

it
a

l
im

p
re

ss
io

n
s 

4
,9

6
0

,4
9

0
 i
m

p
re

ss
io

n
s 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 a

c
ro

ss
 a

ll
 d

e
m

o
s

2

04
7



3

D
ig

it
a

l 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
:

D
ig

it
a

l 
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
:

•
R

O
S
 B

a
n

n
e

r 
A

d
s 

ru
n

 a
c

ro
ss

 o
u

r 

st
a

ti
o

n
's

 w
e

b
si

te

•
Th

is
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 r
a

n
 a

c
ro

ss
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 

9
5

5
, 

W
N

IC
, 
F
M

9
8

 W
J
L
B

, 
 M

ix
 9

2
.3

, 

W
D

F
N

, 
&

 A
lt

 1
0

6
.7

iH
e

a
rt

R
a

d
io

 R
O

S
 B

a
n

n
e

r 
A

d
s

•
1

5
0

,0
0

2
 i
m

p
re

ss
io

n
s 

w
e

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 m
o

n
th

 o
f 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 &
 F

e
b

•
5

0
0

 l
is

te
n

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 c
lic

k
e

d
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 

d
ig

it
a

l c
re

a
ti

v
e

! 

Im
p

re
ss

io
n

s

1
4

2
,4

2
6

.2
5

%
C

TR
 .1

5
%

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l a
v
g

3
5

8
C

lic
k
s

04
8



4

D
ig

it
a

l 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
:

D
ig

it
a

l 
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
:

•
Th

e
 D

R
W

 v
id

e
o

 w
a

s 
sh

a
re

d
 &

 

b
o

o
st

e
d

 o
n

 C
h

a
n

n
e

l’
s 

F
a

c
e

b
o

o
k
 

p
a

g
e

F
a

c
e

b
o

o
k

 B
o

o
st

e
d

 A
d

s

•
W

e
 r

e
a

c
h

e
d

 o
v

e
r 

3
0

,6
1

4
 l
is

te
n

e
rs

 

o
v

e
r 

th
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
2

.5
 w

e
e

k
s!

  

P
e

o
p

le
 R

e
a

c
h

e
d

3
0

,6
1

4

1
0

,0
7

5
To

ta
l 
V

ie
w

s

2
7

P
o

st
 C

lic
k
s

04
9



5

D
ig

it
a

l 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
:

D
ig

it
a

l 
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
:

•
S
p

ik
e

 f
ro

m
 M

o
jo

 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

o
rn

in
g

 

w
e

n
t 

to
 G

o
o

d
 B

u
rg

e
r 
o

n
 T

u
e

sd
a

y
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 1
2

th
, 

to
 k

ic
k
 o

ff
 R

e
st

a
u

ra
n

t 

W
e

e
k
! 

•
W

e
d

n
e

sd
a

y
 2

/1
4

/2
0

1
9

 f
ro

m
 5

p
-7

p

A
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c

e
 –

G
o

o
d

 B
u

rg
e

r

•
C

h
a

n
n

e
l 
9

5
5

 r
a

n
 1

0
x
 :

1
5

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 e
v

e
n

t!

•
W

e
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 t

h
e

 e
v

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

r 
&

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 
9

5
5

’s
 s

o
c

ia
l 

m
e

d
ia

 &
 S

p
ik

e
’s

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
F
a

c
e

b
o

o
k
 

a
n

d
 i
n

st
a

g
ra

m

A
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c

e
 S

u
m

m
a

ry

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 D

e
ta

il
s

05
0



6

D
ig

it
a

l 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
:

D
ig

it
a

l 
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
:

•
J
o

e
y

 f
ro

m
 M

o
jo

 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

o
rn

in
g

 w
e

n
t 

to
 B

ro
m

e
 M

o
d

e
rn

 E
a

te
ry

 a
n

d
 

F
a

m
o

u
s 

H
a

m
b

u
rg

e
r 

fo
r 

a
 “

B
u

rg
e

r 

B
a

tt
le

”
 o

n
 W

e
d

n
e

sd
a

y
 f

ro
m

 

1
1

:3
0

a
m

-1
:3

0
p

m

•
W

e
d

n
e

sd
a

y
 2

/1
5

/2
0

1
9

A
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c

e
 –

B
ro

m
e

 M
o

d
e

rn
 E

a
te

ry
 a

n
d

 F
a

m
o

u
s 

H
a

m
b

u
rg

e
r 

•
C

h
a

n
n

e
l 
9

5
5

 r
a

n
 1

0
x
 :

1
5

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 e
v

e
n

t!

•
W

e
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 t

h
e

 e
v

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

r 
&

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 
9

5
5

’s
 s

o
c

ia
l 

m
e

d
ia

 &
 J

o
e

y
’s

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l s
o

c
ia

l 

p
a

g
e

! 

A
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c

e
 S

u
m

m
a

ry

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 D

e
ta

il
s

05
1



7

D
ig

it
a

l 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
:

D
ig

it
a

l 
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
:

•
S
p

ik
e

 f
ro

m
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 
9

5
5

 w
e

n
t 

to
 

G
a

te
a

u
x
 P

a
ti

ss
e

ri
e

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 

p
ro

c
ra

st
in

a
to

rs
 o

n
 V

a
le

n
ti

n
e

’s
 D

a
y

 

w
it

h
 “

Tr
e

a
ts

 f
o

r 
y

o
u

r 
V

a
le

n
ti

n
e

”

•
Th

u
rs

d
a

y
 2

/1
4

/1
9

 f
ro

m
 1

1
:3

0
A

M
-

1
:3

0
P

M

A
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c

e
 –

G
a

te
a

u
x

 P
a

ti
ss

e
ri

e

•
C

h
a

n
n

e
l 
9

5
5

 r
a

n
 1

0
x
 :

1
5

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 e
v

e
n

t!

•
W

e
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 t

h
e

 e
v

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

r 
&

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 C

h
a

n
n

e
l 
9

5
5

’s
 s

o
c

ia
l 

m
e

d
ia

 &
 S

p
ik

e
's

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l s
o

c
ia

l 

p
a

g
e

s!
 

A
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c

e
 S

u
m

m
a

ry

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 D

e
ta

il
s

05
2



8

G
o

o
g

le
 T

re
n

d
s 

4
-y

e
a

r 
c

o
m

p
a

ri
so

n

G
o

o
g

le
 T

re
n

d
s

is
 a

 

se
a

rc
h

tr
e

n
d

s
fe

a
tu

re
 t

h
a

t 

sh
o

w
s 

h
o

w
fr

e
q

u
e

n
tl

y
 a

 

g
iv

e
n

 s
e

a
rc

h
 t

e
rm

 i
s 

e
n

te
re

d
 

in
to

 G
o

o
g

le
's

se
a

rc
h

 e
n

g
in

e
 

re
la

ti
v

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
it

e
's

 t
o

ta
l 

se
a

rc
h

 v
o

lu
m

e
 o

v
e

r 
a

 g
iv

e
n

 

p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
ti

m
e

.

Th
is

 c
h

a
rt

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

re
 

w
e

re
 m

o
re

 s
e

a
rc

h
e

s 
fo

r 

D
e

a
rb

o
rn

 R
e

st
a

u
ra

n
t 

W
e

e
k

 i
n

 

2
0

1
9

 t
h

a
n

 e
v

e
r 

b
e

fo
re

! 

05
3



9

G
o

o
g

le
 T

re
n

d
s 

Y
e

a
r-

o
v

e
r-

Y
e

a
r 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

so
n

G
o

o
g

le
 T

re
n

d
s

is
 a

 

se
a

rc
h

tr
e

n
d

s
fe

a
tu

re
 t

h
a

t 

sh
o

w
s 

h
o

w
fr

e
q

u
e

n
tl

y
 a

 

g
iv

e
n

 s
e

a
rc

h
 t

e
rm

 i
s 

e
n

te
re

d
 

in
to

 G
o

o
g

le
's

se
a

rc
h

 e
n

g
in

e
 

re
la

ti
v

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
it

e
's

 t
o

ta
l 

se
a

rc
h

 v
o

lu
m

e
 o

v
e

r 
a

 g
iv

e
n

 

p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
ti

m
e

.

G
o

o
g

le
 S

e
a

rc
h

 f
o

r 
th

e
 t

e
rm

 

“
D

e
a

rb
o

rn
 R

e
st

a
u

ra
n

t 
W

e
e

k
”
 

w
a

s 
3

3
%

 h
ig

h
e

r 
in

 2
0

1
9

 t
h

a
n

 

2
0

1
8

. 05
4



1
0

Th
a

n
k

 y
o

u
!!

!

05
5



DEARBORN BIKE SHARE MEETING 
February 28, 2018 
10:00am 
 
Attendance: Sara Gleicher, Steve Horstman, Chris Small, Tim Harrison, Cristina Sheppard-
Decius, Ellen Goedert, Karl Alexander (by phone), Marc Brigolin (by phone), Kate Malicke (by 
phone).  
 
AGENDA 

056



I. 2019 Plans, Stations & Other Amenities 
A. Installation Schedule for New Locations 
B. Location Announcements/Coordination 
C. Coordination of Moving Station in EDDDA?  

1. Bundle with install for UofM; about 30 day process – end of February 
($500 cost; sign reprint $300) option to have DPW - investigate 

D. Other Locations & Sponsors?  
1. Fairlane Town Center (radius restrictions?) near food court; 
2.  Karl will send the new proposal;  
3. Warren/Dix?. 
4. Doug for Wagner Place?  

(1) Detail by end of February can incorporate with UofM install or 
end of March for spring launch;  

E. MMTP/Bike Network Update? 

II. Marketing & Membership 
A. Connecting the Dots: 

1. Marketing that Coordinates with Henry Ford to partner with students to 
go to HF, Union, Downtown and Fairlane; Ideas? Collaborations? 
2. International Student Audience – How Best to Market/Reach? 
3. Detroit Connector open to public and can push to use Zagster  

B. Survey to Riders – sending out in February – daily users and members; 
discount to sign up for annual member and a free ride. 

C. Open Streets – Schaefer south of the via duct to Tireman; June 9th 11am-
3pm; amenities/temporary pop up stations 

D. Walk N Roll Ride launch date ? incorporating or separate event to 
demonstrate 

Bikedearborn = ½ off annual membership 
bikemonth = 1 free ride (used in eblast and social for the month of May) 
visitdearborn = 1 free ride (used in our brochure rack card) 
freeride = 1 free ride (used in conjunction with our hoteliers and Wagner Place employees) 
 
 

1. Installation Schedule: April 1, 30 Days Out 
a. Separate Installs- Soft Installation on April 1, Hard Promotional Launch Later in 

the week  
b. Concrete needs to be poured 10 days early to set.  

2. Locations: Unions @ Dearborn (near Zipcars on Evergreen Rd.), University Center (UM-
D), Hubbard @ Fairlane Town Center.  

3. News/Marketing Updates: 

057



a. Kate- News release on website on April 1st. 
b. Article in Alumni magazine happening in early May.  
c. Student Gov’t @ UM-D involved and excited, ties into healthy lifestyles initiative.  
d. Social Media Teasers: “Zagster is coming…..” for UM- hold for city-wide release.  
e. Large market w/ international students.  

4. Scooters:  
a. Zagster is partnering with Spin. Spin acquired by Ford.  
b. Worth looking into creating scooter program before competitors arrive, be in 

charge of scooters that are here.  
5. Other Partnerships:  

a. Henry Ford College  
b. Dearborn Inn? 

6. Open Streets: 
a. On hold- looking towards 2020.  

7. Walk N Roll:  
a. May 1st  
b. Beaumont Dearborn President Leading 
c. Could include bike hop and training on bike sharing 

i. Bike share can be intimidating for those who have never done it. Host 
training event so people can practice and learn to use bike share and 
locate racks easily.  

058



Downtown Dearborn 

Promot ions Commit tee 
 

Feb. 11-17 Dearborn Restaurant  Week  

March Reading Month 

April Art  Month 

April 13 Mart ian Marathon 

May 1 Ladies Night  

May 18 Spring Perennial Exchange 

June Farm to Table 

 

At tending: Kat ie Merrit t , Maryanne Bart les, Crist ina Sheppard-Decius, John Diponio, Teresa 

Duhl, Jean Smith, Chris Sickle, Maria Marzolo, Sam Abbas 

I. Impact  Analysis/Sponsor Recaps: 

a. Dearborn Restaurant  Week 

i. Report  required covering all impact  points (impressions, reach, etc.). 

Report  w ill go to sponsors and DDDA boards. 

ii. Send survey to part icipat ing restaurants to acquire feedback. 

b. Shop Small/Winterfest   

i. Report  required covering all impact  points (impressions, reach, etc.). 

Report  w ill go to sponsors and DDDA boards. 

ii. Send survey (again) to part icipat ing shops to acquire feedback. 

 

II. Sponsorships 

a. Policy – Final Review  

i. Add info about  PA57--how and why DDAs spend money. 

ii. Board has unt il the end of today (2/27) to review. 

b. List  of sponsors to TF for t racking purposes 

i. Wants to t rack our sponsors, so they can t rack media 

impressions/reach/etc. all the way through the year, as those 

interact ions occur, rather than ret roact ively. 

 

III. Metromode Cont ract  

Meet ing Date:   

February 27, 2018  

10:00 am 

Meet ing Locat ion: 

DDDA Off ice 

13615 Michigan Avenue 

059



a. Advisory Commit tee (AC) 

i. Seeking volunteers from the Promot ions Commit tee to serve. 

ii. AC does brainstorming for stories/story ideas; who to reach out  to for 

those stories (sources). They also monitor the receipt  of deliverables in 

the Metromode cont ract . 

1. Stories focus on businesses in the community--innovat ion, new, 

interest ing, etc. 

b. Contract /Stories/Ideas 

i. Contract  has been renewed with slight ly changed deliverables--more 

focused. 

ii. Potent ial Story Ideas 

1. New director at  AANM. 

2. New bakeries in east  end. 

3. New playscape-coffee biz in east  end. 

4. New chocolate place in east  end (on Schaefer near Alcamo’s 

(near Osborne St .) 

5. New bout ique in east  end. 

6. Could use addit ional ideas for stories. 

7. Do theme stories: breweries, bakeries, recreat ion, art , colleges, 

etc. 

IV. Print ing Deadlines 

a. CTM – March 15 

b. Summer Brochure – April 15 (Final deadline) 

i. Need lists of all summer sponsors and entertainment  f inalized, so they 

go on the brochure. 

 

V. First  Quarter Events Tasks & Updates 

a. Reading Month Business Part icipat ion & Social 

i. Artspace engagement  st ill a challenge. 

1. CSD will reach out  to Lola to at tempt  to involve them. 

2. Event  at  Artspace will have to happen at  the end of March. 

3. DDDAs will promote the event  in a similar way that  they do 

Trick or Treat . 

ii. Green Brain has 3 reading events this month. Check Green Brain 

website.  

1. DDDA staff  w ill promote those events on its own social media. 

b. Mart ian Marathon Business Sign Ups & Social 

i. Create sign up genius to dist ribute mart ians to businesses (TD) 

060



c. Ladies Night  (Chris Sickle) determinat ion – Sponsor/Part icipant  Sign Up 

deadline March 25 

i. Bailey’s on board. Chris and Jean will at tempt  to provide context  info 

to help them move forward on event --given staff  changes since last  

year. 

ii. Jean will reach out  to east  end businesses to engage them in this 

event . 

d. Farm to Table (Maria Marzolo):  Date, Sponsors, Print ing Needs 

i. Avoid conflict  w/Taste of Dearborn (6/19/19) 

ii. Invites should go out  2 months ahead. 

1. Via save-the-date with a raff le (two winners who sign up early). 

2. Save the date should go out  by March 15. 

iii. Date st ill being f igured out . 

iv. Theme of 1920s. 90 years for Dearborn. 

v. Food: M Cant ina, Gateaux 

vi. Will be held outdoors under a tent --Wagner Place? West  Village 

Commons? Rooftop of Wagner? 

vii. Weather issues? Alternate indoor locat ion? 

viii. Chef per course. 

e. Spring Perennial Exchange (Kat ie Merrit t ) 

i. St ill looking for sponsors 

ii. Planning to get  ahead on print  materials and graphics/artwork 

f . Kids Day 

i. Prepping to book all of the entertainment . 

g. Friday Nights 

i. Music being booked. 

h. Movies in the Park & Movies at  Wagner Place 

i. Movies selected, being arranged 

i. Farmers Market  

i. Vendors apps sent  out . 

ii. Sponsors being recruited. 

iii. Ads being prepared. 

VI. Social/Online Communicat ion 

a. Business & Community Leader Prof iles 

i. To start : The DDDAs’ new board chairs 

ii. Later: commit tee members and other community members who are 

act ively engaged  

iii. Ideas: 

061



1. Tracy Besek (Dearborn Walk and Roll) 

2. Mural art ists 

b. Reading Month/Mart ian 

c. St . Pat ty’s Day Fun/Mardi Gras 

i. Breweries 

d. Blogging 

i. Monthly blog post  

ii. List  of people willing to write/cont ribute 

iii. Maria’s “ Posit ively Dearborn”  FB page was intended in this direct ion. 

e. Student  Instagram Take Over 

i. In planning phase. 

f . Social Media Event  Boost ing 

i. When boost ing events, do so in a “ series”  (if  applicable to that  event )--

CSD reports far more effect ive than individual boosts. 

VII. Volunteer/Commit tee Needs 

a. Recruit  a St reet  Team Coordinator 

i. Jean will at tempt  to recruit . 

ii. Jean will create job descript ion. 

b. Commit tee/Event  Needs – List  of Volunteer Dut ies/Time/Responsibilit ies 

i. Send volunteer needs to the DDDAs--be sure to include descript ion of 

responsibilit ies 

VIII. Zagster Spring Promot ion 

a. Bike share program starts season on March 15 

IX. AANM Fest ival 

a. Int ros: Catherine Rurbowski (sp?) and Ryah Aqel 

b. Music, Food, Art : August   17-18 

i. Arab-Am performers 

ii. Art ists workshops 

iii. @ City Hall Park 

iv. Vendor Market  on Maple St reet  (food and art isans) 

X. Other 

a. Maria Marzolo launched a new Facebook page featuring good news about  

Dearborn: “ Posit ively Dearborn” . 

b. Library would like to coordinate  w ith the DDDAs this summer for 

programming. 

i. Closed: May 20 to mid-September 

ii. Limited opening on Memorial Day. 

062



iii. Library st ill needs staff  space 

 

063



EEDDDA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE Minutes 
 Attending: Dan Merritt, Jay Kruz, Scott Saionz, Mark Guido 

 5:30PM – 6:45 PM 

March 11, 2019 
 
 

1. JOINT BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 
a. Finance Reports 
b. Budget – Zero Out the following items from next year and beyond 

i. Jazz on the Ave $55K 
1. Open to sponsors covering event.  DDA cannot sustain this cost. 

ii. Metro Mode $24K 
iii. Bldg. Incentive $40K 

c. EDDDA supports immediate implementation of 2 Mills or $45K annual.  We do 
not support PSD and agree with the WDDDA.  We will cut items to prioritize 

i. Branding 
ii. Infrastructure 

iii. Business Attraction 
iv. Walkability 
v. Some events but less emphasis on this.  We want family friendly events 

that boost retail traffic in the district.  
d. Sponsor Policy – EDDDA SUPPORTS THIS 

i. Needs parameters and guidelines to make it very clear how we sponsor 
projects like the Sidewalk Café.  A percentage (like 10%) might work. 

e. Michigan Avenue Banner Installation – EDDDA SUPPORTS THIS 
f. Sculpture Initiative – Nardeem brothers -we support this 
g. Ladies Night Additional Marketing (POTENTIALLY) ($5689 remaining in General 

Marketing) – West DDDA can do this event.  East will defer. 
h. DISCUSSION:  Business Incentives, Sidewalk Café Info Sheets 

i. Need more information on Business incentives 
ii. EDDDA supports Sidewalk Café, we do not want to set path for wave of 

requests from others though. Clear Parameters need to be defined.  We 
like the 10 – 20 % idea. 

iii. Need Study on how much we save annually by not watering/planting 
flower bed.  Maybe if this is $3K it gives us a nice payback. 

iv. How much business will this attract into the district with visible seating 
outside.   We support this. 

 
2. EAST ONLY AGENDA ITEMS 

a. AANM Festival Introduction 
b. Michigan Avenue Tree Wells ($7,760 remaining in Building Incentives) 

064



i. Why add trees if we plan to remove anyway?  
c. Streetscape Amenities - Trash Cans ($10,958 remaining) 

i. Can we get cheaper cans? See Cans at GTC $500 each. 
ii. Will the city charge us to empty the cans? 
iii. Can we test in an area for one year first and see how it goes? 
iv. Do we need to remove the cans in the winter or can they stay out all 

year? 
 

3. UPDATES 
a. Schaefer Lighting ($34,581) 

i. Dan will attend the March 26 city council meeting. City is already paying 
electric bill. LED lights will be a big savings for the city.  Can they apply 
any of that savings to chip in for lights? If no then DDA still believes that 
this is critical infrastructure and supports. 

b. Parking Lots 
i. When will Engineering send the CAD to SMITH?  Mark is going to call and 

check on the progress. 
c. ACT 57 Reporting Compliance – Submitted TIF Plan to Treasury 
d. Tackling Vacancy Roundtable – Setting Date in April 

i. Need more detail on this plan 
e. Snow Removal Contract 
f. DRW Report 
g. Branding 
h. Sponsorships – (The EDDDA needs about $20,000 to meet budget goal – we need 

Board help and action on this) 
i. POW! Strategies Contract 

i. Monthly status report will be discussed with POW, we support the 
current simplified contract. 

 
4. On-Deck/Upcoming 

a. City Hall Park Concept ($20,000 previously budgeted, but Schaefer lighting needs 
to come out of this) – this has been postponed waiting Storm Water Plans 

i. Mark is going to check with Engineering 
b. Vision Plan ($20,000 remaining budgeted – Schaefer lighting needs to come out 

of this as well) (Bid or SmithGroup?) – @$5,000 remaining, and then remaining 
funding needs to come from FYE2020 now 

c. MOU for DDDA Joint Partnership – in development (April) 
d. Purchasing Policy – (Legal) – EDDDA SUPPORTS THIS 

 

065



West Dearborn Downtown Development Authority 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING  
111 MARCH 2019 / 9:00 AM / DDDAs Office @ Artspace  

ATTENDEES

Sam Abbas, Doug Van Noord, James Jernigan, Cristina Sheppard-Decius, Jean Smith, Ellen Goedert 

MINUTES 

Joint Board Meeting Agenda Items  
1. Finance Reports 
2. Budget 

a. Discussion on new budget documents. FYE 2020-22 Budget to be voted on at 
March 21st meeting.  

b. Discussion on Branding Contract & Costs and how to get other city 
partners/invested in Branding Contract moving forward. Branding will benefit 
the entire city, so searching for additional sources of income to pay for those 
services is necessary.  

3. Sponsor Policy 
4. Michigan Avenue Banner Installation 
5. Sculpture Initiative 

a. Nordin Brothers is new contract for sculptures this year. Comparing costs of 
sculptures currently, discussion on future of getting a permanent piece for the 
city. 

b. Sculpture contract is in partnership with EDDDA and Dearborn Community Fund. 
c. EmmaJean Woodyard from Dearborn Community Fund will be available for next 

board meeting.  
6. Ladies Night Additional Marketing (POTENTIALLY) 

a. Jean Smith discusses quote for billboards from Outfront Media. Quotes seem too 
expensive, will re-examine billboards.  

b. Marketing funds for ladies night can be used with iHeart Media. A resolution will 
be created for the board meeting requesting an increase in Ladies Night 
marketing budget to total $5,000. 
 

7. DISCUSSION:  Business Incentives, Sidewalk Café Info Sheets 

066



WWest Only Agenda Items

1. Summer Banners
2. Friday Nites

a. Discussion on current obstacles to using food trucks during Friday Nites.
Discussion on solutions and possible partnerships with restaurants close to the
event.

Updates
a. ACT 57 Reporting Compliance – Submitted TIF Plan to Treasury
b. Tackling Vacancy Roundtable – Setting Date in April
c. Streetscapes – Connector & Michigan Ave/Wagner
d. Snow Removal Contract
e. DRW Report
f. Branding
g. Sponsorships

On- Deck/Upcoming (not discussed)
h. Streetscape Amenities ($16,513 remaining)
i. Wagner Park Events & Amenities ($15,000 equipment/events)
j. Vision Plan ($20,000 budgeted) (Bid or SmithGroup?)
k. MOU for DDDA Joint Partnership – in development (April)
l. Purchasing Policy – (Legal)

067



● Exterior landscaping, outdoor cafés or seating areas

● Construction or installation of ADA facilities

● Installation of fixed artwork

● Installation of bike racks

● All materials and labor for work performed in association with

above-mentioned improvements

● New construction

INELIGIBLE COSTS

● Appraiser or attorney fees
● Expenses incurred prior to application date

● Property acquisition, mortgage, land contract financing or loan fees

● Building permit fees

● Maintenance items: Roofs, building systems, parking lots, electrical or mechanical work, etc.

● Interior renovation or work that is not associated with expansion

● Interior signage of any kind

● Furnishings, trade fixtures, display cases, counters, computers, equipment or other items taxed

as personal property

NOTE:  Thes eligible and ineligible costs are not all-inclusive. Final determination of eligibility

requirements are governed by the DDDA Boards.

068



�  GRANT PAYMENTS

DDA grants are awarded to recipients as reimbursements.

All work must be in compliance with the aforementioned requirements and

original receipts for work performed must be provided in order to receive reimbursement.

In order to receive grant reimbursement, the establishment must be open for regular business.

Grant payments must be personally guaranteed by the business owner through signing the provided

personal guarantee agreement.

Level 3 Grants Only - To receive reimbursement, the property owner must sign an agreement to

maintain the improvements funded for the building as rehabilitated for a period of at least 3 years for a

reimbursement total of $1 - $4,999, and at least 5 years for a reimbursement total over $5,000. This

agreement shall provide for a lien against the property in an amount equal to the reimbursement

amount. For reimbursements totaling over $5,000, twenty (20) percent of said lien for improvements

shall be forgiven annually on the anniversary date of the Certificate of Completion. For reimbursements

totaling $4,999 or below will have thirty-three and one-third percent (33.3%) of the lien forgiven

annually on the anniversary date of the Certificate of Completion. Should the property be sold or

refinanced prior to the full forgiveness of the lien, the remaining amount of the lien shall be paid to the

DDDAs upon sale, or closing of the refinancing loan. The agreement shall be filed with Wayne County

Register of Deeds and transferred upon sale of the property.

069



�  PROJECT PRIORITIES 

DDA Grants are competitive, meaning that the most viable projects will be

selected for grant funding. The more documentation (photographs, renderings,

sketches, estimates) you are able to provide about your project will increase your

chances of receiving grant funding. Applications containing the following characteristics will have

priority in the appropriation of DDA funding:

● Projects containing a high ratio of private to public dollars

● Projects designed to resolve deteriorated, inappropriate or unsightly conditions that have existed

for many years (boarded windows, deteriorated electrical fixtures, unsightly storefronts, etc.)

● Projects that enhance pedestrian movement from the rear to the front of buildings

● Projects designed to restore the historic condition of the building facade

● Projects that will complete the improvement of a block or portion of a block (ex. replacement of

an inappropriate facade that exists on a block containing many appropriate, well-preserved, or

improved facades)

Projects which contain the following types of businesses will be given priority over others for grant award

consideration as established by the adopted Downtown Dearborn Strategic Plan:

● Various types of restaurants and entertainment establishments

● Merchandising & retail stores

● Upscale jewelry stores

● Kitchen supplies and utensil

● Wine/craft beer/cheese

● General food/grocer

● Upscale second hand store/boutique

● Specialty merchant stores

● Boutique Hotel

● Upscale antique/vintage store

● Book/record/music store

● Breweries

● Shoe store

● Art Galleries and Studios

● Makers and Innovators

● Incubators

● Pop-Up Experiences

070



�  GRANT PAYMENT TIMELINE

Please note that if the grant application deadline falls on a weekend or a holiday,

the deadline for the grant shall be the following weekday.

071



APPLICATION  �

Application Date ______/______/______

Business

Name_________________________________________________________________________

Property Address_______________________________________________________________________

Business Owner________________________________________________________________________

Business Owner

Address_______________________________________________________________________________

Business Owner________________________________________________________________________

Business Owner Phone__________________  Email___________________________________________

Property Owner________________________________________________________________________

Property Owner Address_________________________________________________________________

Property Owner Phone__________________Email____________________________________________

Is this business currently located within the DDA District?      Yes      No

Is this business expanding? Yes No

Amount of square footage to be added to building_____________________________________________

Is this an existing or a new business?      New    Existing

If relocating, when was this business established?______________________________________________

If relocating, please list current address______________________________________________________

Estimated start date of project ______/______/______

Estimated completion date of project ______/______/______

Total cost of project $________________________    Amount requested $__________________________

072



APPLYING FOR:

Level 1 Grant

Level 2 Grant

Level 3 Grant

By signing this grant application, I understand that grant payment must be

personally guaranteed. If my business does not remain open for 6 consecutive months after grant

payment, the grant funding must be repaid in full to the DDDAs.

_______________________________________________________________________________________

Signature of Applicant Date

�  MANDATORY CHECKLIST 

Please submit with your application the following 4 attachments (required):

Narrative describing in detail how this project will benefit the DDDA Districts and a description of

your project

Architectural plans, renderings, sketches or illustrations depicting the work to be performed

Breakdown of the costs associated (estimates) with your project. Please include the entire project

cost and the amount you are requesting

Copy of your company’s business plan

NOTE: All decisions concerning aspects of the grant application process, including eligibility and/or

containing eligibility for grants are within the sole discretion of the DDDA Boards. Incomplete

applications will not be reviewed and make sure to retain a copy for your records.

�  SUBMIT

Please return grant application and supporting documentation to:  

Dearborn Downtown Development Authorities

13615 Michigan Avenue, Suite B-2

Dearborn, MI 48126

info@downtowndearborn.org

For more info about Downtown Dearborn events and projects visit www.downtowndearborn.org .

073



EAST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Metromode Contract 2019 
 

Date Adopted: 2/21/2019 

Resolution by: Motioned: Mary O’Bryan; Seconded: Kamal Turfah 

 

WHEREAS: The EDDDA values and desires to increase communications, public relations, marketing and media 
exposure for Downtown East Dearborn; and  

WHEREAS: The EDDDA currently has  contract with Issue Media Group/Metromode which expires on 02/15/2019. 
Issue Media Group/Metromode has agreed to renew the contract at the same rate; and 

WHEREAS:   Issue Media Group/Metromode has offered to provide economic development news stories and 
entrepreneur engagement discussions to build an entrepreneurial ecosystem through its MetroMode and 
SecondWave media platforms; and 

 
WHEREAS:    The proposed agreement is for six months at $24,000 in total for 2019 from March 1, 2019 –August 31, 

2019, with two three-month renewals at $12,000 each, which will be equally split between the EDDDA 
and WDDDA; and 

 
RESOLVED:   That the EDDDA allocates $12,000 from Community Promotions account 297-6100-911-51-00 for a media 

contract with Issue Media Group/Metromode for a contract running March 1, 2019 - August 31, 2019,  
with the option of two three-month renewals at $6,000 each; and that the EDDDA Executive Director be 
authorized to execute and sign the contract agreement; subject to review and approval by 
Corporation Counsel. 

. 
 

Yes: Janice Cislo, Mark Guido, Jay Kruz, Judith McNeeley, Mary O’Bryan, Mayor Jack O’Reilly, 
Scott Saionz, Kamal Turfah 

No:  None. 

Abstained: None. 

Absent:  Joseph Bojovic, Dan Merritt 

 



WEST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Metromode Contract 2019 
 

Date Adopted: 2/21/2019 

Resolution by:  Motioned: Mayor Jack O’Reilly; Seconded: John McWilliams 

 

WHEREAS: The WDDDA values and desires to increase communications, public relations, marketing 
and media exposure for Downtown West Dearborn; and  

WHEREAS: The WDDDA currently has a contract with Issue Media Group/Metromode which expires 
on 02/15/2019. Issue Media Group/Metromode has agreed to renew the contract at the same rate; and 

WHEREAS:   Issue Media Group/Metromode has offered to provide economic development news stories and 
entrepreneur engagement discussions to build an entrepreneurial ecosystem through its MetroMode and 
SecondWave media platforms; and 

 
WHEREAS:    The proposed agreement is for six months at $24,000 in total for 2019 from March 1, 2019 –August 31, 

2019, with two three-month renewals at $12,000 each, which will be equally split between the EDDDA 
and WDDDA; and 

 
RESOLVED:   That the WDDDA allocates $12,000 from Community Promotions account 296-6100-911-51-00 for a 

media contract with Issue Media Group/Metromode for a contract running March 1, 2019 - August 31, 
2019,  with the option of two three-month renewals at $6,000 each; and that the WDDDA Executive 
Director be authorized to execute and sign the contract agreement; subject to review and approval by 
Corporation Counsel. 

. 
 

Yes: Sam Abbas, Thomas Clark, Mark Guido, Jackie Lovejoy, John McWilliams, Karen Nigosian, 
Mayor Jack O’Reilly, and Doug Van Noord  

No:  None. 

Abstained: None. 

Absent:  Mohammed Hider, James Jernigan 

 



EAST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Updated 2019 Dearborn Restaurant Week Expense Report  Date Adopted: 2/21/19 Resolution By: Motioned by Secretary-Treasurer Jay Kruz; Seconded by Director Jan Cislo 
WHEREAS: The WDDDA and EDDDA Board of Directors recognize the importance of promoting the district and its assets, including building notoriety of the restaurant culture in Downtown Dearborn; and 
 

WHEREAS:   The WDDDA and EDDDA Promotions Committee is coordinating the third annual Dearborn Restaurant Week for February 11-17, 2019, and is soliciting funds to support the event; and 
 

WHEREAS: The Promotions Committee presented a projected budget of $34,000 in anticipated income from participation fees and sponsorships and $32,600  in anticipated expenditures for Dearborn Restaurant Week; and  
WHEREAS: The EDDDA and WDDDA agree to split the income and expenditures equally; and  
WHEREAS: At its November 15, 2018 meeting, the EDDDA approved expenditures up to $16,300 from Account #297-6100-911-51-00 for costs related to Dearborn Restaurant Week; be it  
RESOLVED:  The EDDDA authorizes sharing expenditures equally with the WDDDA related to Dearborn Restaurant Week with the following service providers:   
Vendor Purpose Amount 

Hallarsen Group Content, Design, Creative & Web $ 2,750.00 

iHeart Media Radio Promotions $ 19,750.00 

Times Herald Newspaper Ads $ 600.00 

Outfront Billboards Billboard Advertising $ 6,000.00 

Got Print Coasters $ 400.00 

Beshara Printing Menu Printing and Posters Printing $ 1,600.00 

Malko Media Banners $ 1,000.00 



Metro Times Newspaper Ads $500.00  
RESOLVED:  The EDDDA director is authorized to execute contracts on behalf of the EDDDA with the companies listed above for Dearborn Restaurant Week, subject to review and approval by Corporation Counsel.     Yes:  Jan Cislo, Mark Guido, Jay Kruz, Judith McNeeley, Mary O’ Bryan, Mayor Jack O’Reilly,    Scott Saionz, Kamal Turfah  No: none    Abstained: none Absent: Joseph Bojovic, Dan Merritt Adopted: Yes 

 



WEST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Updated 2019 Dearborn Restaurant Week Expense Report  Date Adopted: 2/21/19 Resolution By: Motioned by Director Mark Guido; seconded by Director Thomas Clark. 
WHEREAS: The WDDDA and EDDDA Board of Directors recognize the importance of promoting the district and its assets, including building notoriety of the restaurant culture in Downtown Dearborn; and 
 

WHEREAS:   The WDDDA and EDDDA Promotions Committee is coordinating the third annual Dearborn Restaurant Week for February 11-17, 2019, and is soliciting funds to support the event; and 
 

WHEREAS: The Promotions Committee presented a projected budget of $34,000 in anticipated income from participation fees and sponsorships and $32,600  in anticipated expenditures for Dearborn Restaurant Week; and  
WHEREAS: The EDDDA and WDDDA agree to split the income and expenditures equally; and  
WHEREAS: At its November 15, 2018 meeting, the WDDDA approved expenditures up to $16,300 from Account #296-6100-911-51-00 for costs related to Dearborn Restaurant Week; be it  
RESOLVED:  The WDDDA authorizes sharing expenditures equally with the EDDDA related to Dearborn Restaurant Week with the following service providers:   
Vendor Purpose Amount 

Hallarsen Group Content, Design, Creative & Web $ 2,750.00 

iHeart Media Radio Promotions $ 19,750.00 

Times Herald Newspaper Ads $ 600.00 

Outfront Billboards Billboard Advertising $ 6,000.00 

Got Print Coasters $ 400.00 

Beshara Printing Menu Printing and Posters Printing $ 1,600.00 

Malko Media Banners $ 1,000.00 



Metro Times Newspaper Ads $500.00  
RESOLVED: The WDDDA director is authorized to execute contracts on behalf of the WDDDA with the companies listed above for Dearborn Restaurant Week, subject to review and approval by Corporation Counsel.     Yes: Sam Abbas, Thomas Clark, John McWilliams, Karen Nigosian, Doug Van Noord, Mark  Guido, Mayor Jack O’Reilly, Jackie Lovejoy No: none. Abstained: none. Absent: Mohammed Hider, James Jernigan, Audrey Ralko Adopted: Yes  

 



EAST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

2019 Additional Snow Removal Funds  Date Adopted:  2/21/2019   Resolution by: Motioned by Kamal Turfah; Seconded by Jay Kruz   
WHEREAS: The 2018-2019 winter season has been unusually snowy and icy and;  
WHEREAS:  The original snow removal budget of $30,000 has been depleted while the threat of snow and ice 

still remains for this season; therefore be it  
 

RESOLVED:  The EDDDA Board authorizes an additional $15,000 to the snow removal services budget 297-
6100-911-34-90 for contracted services for the 2018-2019 winter season.  
 

RESOLVED:   Final payment for services will be contingent upon Premium Lawn’s 
(contractor) repair of damaged fencing and public property in the WDDDA district.   
 

 Yes:  Janice Cislo, Mark Guido, Jay Kruz, Judith McNeeley, Mary O’Bryan, Mayor Jack O’Reilly, Scott  Saionz, Kamal Turfah No:  None. Abstained: None. Absent:  Joseph Bojovic, Dan Merritt    



EAST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Artspace Loan Extension 2019 
 Date Adopted:  2/21/2019 Resolution by:  Motioned by Mayor Jack O’Reilly; Seconded by Kamal Turfah. 

 

WHEREAS: The Downriver Community Consortium (DCC) loaned $142,029.20 to the EDDDA at 0% 
interest for five years. Repayment is $14,202.92 annually for 10 years beginning on 
September 4, 2019; and 

WHEREAS: The EDDDA loaned the proceeds of the DCC loan to Artspace (City Hall Commercial, 
LLC) for the remediation of hazardous substances, at the same terms of repayment as 
the EDDDA/DCC loan; and 

WHEREAS: Artspace also borrowed funds from lender IFF which has agreed to extend the maturity 
date of a bridge loan agreement for the commercial portion of the project at 13615 
Michigan Avenue that was initially entered into on December 4, 2014, and by 
amendment matured on December 1, 2018; and  

WHEREAS: The EDDDA loan to Artspace is subordinate to the IFF loan to Artspace; and 

WHEREAS: Artspace has requested that the EDDDA consent to allow extension of 
repayment of the Artspace/IFF loan so that Artspace may utilize available funds to 
complete improvements in the commercial space to make it desirable to potential 
tenants; therefore be it 

RESOLVED:  The EDDDA authorizes the EDDDA Chairperson to execute a consent document for the 
Artspace/IFF loan modification agreement, revising the loan maturity date to June 1, 
2019, subject to review and approval by Corporation Counsel. 

 

Yes:  Janice Cislo, Mark Guido, Jay Kruz, Judith McNeeley, Mary O’Bryan, Mayor Jack  
 O’Reilly, Scott Saionz, Kamal Turfah 

No:  None. 
Abstained: None. 
Absent:  Joseph Bojovic, Dan Merritt 
 



EAST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

2019 Free Comic Book Day Sponsorship   Date Adopted: 2/21/2019   Resolution by: Motioned by Mark Guido; Seconded by Judith McNeeley.    
WHEREAS:    The East Dearborn Downtown Development Authority (EDDDA) recognizes hosting, creating and 

sponsoring special public and community events in East Downtown as a means to reach the goals 
of increased traffic and commerce, which benefit its businesses and neighborhoods; and,    

WHEREAS:    Green Brain Comics has invited the EDDDA to be a sponsor of its Free Comic Book Day; therefore, 
be it 

  

RESOLVED:   The EDDDA approve an amount not to exceed $1,000.00 from the Community Promotions 
budget account 297-6100-911-51-00 in support of Green Brain Comics’ Free Comic Book Day to 
be held May 4, 2019; and further be it  

  

RESOLVED: The money provided by the EDDDA will be used to promote the EDDDA; and be it further  
 

RESOLVED:  The EDDDA will be listed as a sponsor in all materials. 

  Yes:  Janice Cislo, Mark Guido, Jay Kruz, Judith McNeeley, Mary O’Bryan, Mayor Jack O’Reilly,  Scott Saionz, Kamal Turfah No:  None. Abstained: None. Absent:  Joseph Bojovic, Dan Merritt  
 



EAST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

POW! Strategies, Inc. Contract   Date Adopted: 2/21/2019   Resolution by: Motioned by Kamal Turfah; Seconded by Judith McNeeley.   
WHEREAS:    The East Dearborn Downtown Development Authority (“EDDDA”) and West Dearborn Downtown 

Development Authority (“WDDDA”) executed a contract (“Contract”) with POW! Strategies, Inc. 
(“POW”), dated June 29, 2018, which was extended by way of amendment through February 28, 
2019, for executive director services; and    

WHEREAS:    POW, the EDDDA, and WDDDA agree to extend the current contract terms, subject to mutually 
agreeable modifications, through December 31, 2019, and 

 
WHEREAS:   POW, the EDDDA, and WDDDA mutually agree that the rate of compensation shall remain 

unchanged; therefore be it 
  

RESOLVED: That the EDDDA Board of Directors authorizes the EDDDA Chairperson to execute a contract with 
POW! Strategies, Inc. for executive director services extended through December 31, 2019; be it 
further  

 

RESOLVED:  That the contract is subject to the review and approval of Corporation Counsel. 

  Yes:  Janice Cislo, Mark Guido, Jay Kruz, Judith McNeeley, Mary O’Bryan, Mayor Jack O’Reilly,  Scott Saionz, Kamal Turfah No:  None. Abstained: None. Absent:  Joseph Bojovic, Dan Merritt  
 



WEST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

POW! Strategies, Inc. Contract   Date Adopted: 2/21/2019   Resolution by: Motioned by Mayor Jack O’Reilly; Seconded by Thomas Clark.   
WHEREAS:    The West Dearborn Downtown Development Authority (“WDDDA”) and East Dearborn 

Downtown Development Authority (“EDDDA”) executed a contract (“Contract”) with POW! 
Strategies, Inc. (“POW”), dated June 29, 2018, which was extended by way of amendment 
through February 28, 2019, for executive director services; and    

WHEREAS:    POW, the WDDDA, and EDDDA agree to extend the current contract terms, subject to mutually 
agreeable modifications, through December 31, 2019, and 

 
WHEREAS:   POW, the WDDDA, and EDDDA mutually agree that the rate of compensation shall remain 

unchanged; therefore be it 
  

RESOLVED: That the WDDDA Board of Directors authorizes the WDDDA Chairperson to execute a contract 
with POW! Strategies, Inc. for executive director services extended through December 31, 2019; 
be it further  

 

RESOLVED:  That the contract is subject to the review and approval of Corporation Counsel. 

Yes:  Sam Abbas, Thomas Clark, Mark Guido, Jackie Lovejoy, John McWilliams, Karen Nigosian,  and Mayor Jack O’Reilly  No:  None. Abstained: None. Absent:  Mohammed Hider, James Jernigan, Doug Van Noord (departed early)   
 



WEST DEARBORN 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

2019 Additional Snow Removal Funds  Date Adopted:  2/21/2019  Resolution by:  Motioned by Mayor Jack O’Reilly; Seconded by Doug Van Noord  
WHEREAS: The 2018-2019 winter season has been unusually snowy and icy and;  
WHEREAS:  The original snow removal budget of $30,000 has been depleted while the threat of snow and ice 

still remains for this season; therefore, be it  
 

RESOLVED:  The WDDDA Board authorizes an additional $15,000 to the snow removal services budget 296-
6100-911-34-90 for contracted services for the 2018-2019 winter season with Premium Lawn; 
and be it further   

RESOLVED:   Final payment for services will be contingent upon Premium Lawn’s (contractor) repair of 
damaged fencing and public property in the WDDDA district.   
 

 Yes: Sam Abbas, Thomas Clark, Mark Guido, Jackie Lovejoy, John McWilliams, Karen Nigosian,   Mayor Jack O’Reilly, and Doug Van Noord  No: None. Abstained: None. Absent: Mohammed Hider, James Jernigan   
 


